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Your Partner 
             for Success

Mission Statement

At WashingtonFirst our mission is to be your partner for financial success, to provide a sound investment for our shareholders 
and to support our local communities. our unique approach to banking and our “can do” attitude is what sets us apart from 
the competition. At WashingtonFirst, our philosophy is to provide customized banking solutions and top-notch service that 
truly address your individual needs.
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 our financial performance reflects management’s commitment to 

delivering profitable growth and creating shareholder value.  At every 

level, we strive to consistently provide outstanding customer service 

and offer competitive, high-value products and services.

  

Letter to Investors

March 16, 2010

Dear WashingtonFirst Shareholders:

 

on behalf of the Board of Directors, our management team, and employees, I am very pleased to 

share with you our performance for 2009. 

  

We have seen so much change over the last 18 to 24 months in the economy and in our world.   

It seems hard to believe that only a year ago, the government initiated unprecedented actions in 

the form of bailout and stimulus programs to help stabilize our economy. 

A year later what has changed?  In the Banking and Capital 

Markets sector, we find ourselves in an interesting period of 

market stabilization, with some institutions returning to strong 

performance, while others continue to struggle and close their 

doors.  As the sector continues to work its way toward a healthy 

and sustainable state, it is estimated that more banks may fail 

this year than last year.

Despite the challenges of the market, I am pleased to share 

with you that for 2009, we outperformed many of our peers 

and continued the very strong, profitable growth of our bank.  

We ended 2009 with assets growing to over $355 million, a 

growth rate of more than 18% compared to 2008. over the 

same period, deposits increased 20% and net loans increased 

19%. net income for 2009 was $543,233, an increase of more 

than 175% when compared to the prior year.  
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our financial performance reflects management’s commitment to delivering profitable growth and 

creating shareholder value.  At every level, we strive to consistently provide outstanding customer 

service and offer competitive, high-value products and services.  the market continues to respond 

to our approach, which is reflected in the increases in key metrics above. Additionally, our approach 

to lending continues to be one of the cornerstones of our business.   We consistently focus on  

making high quality loans and maintaining a very low percentage of non-performing loans, which 

for 2009 was a remarkable 1.1%. 

throughout 2009, management took specific actions to address the challenges and opportunities  

that the market presented the bank.  We instituted a floor on loans to better manage and improve 

our net interest margin.   We took substantial measures to minimize non-interest expense. And we 

sought to increase non-interest income. 

  

I know that we are all very pleased to see 2009 come to a close. Given the challenges of the past year, 

I am especially pleased with our bank’s performance.  each and every day we work to exceed your 

expectations and deliver outstanding results. our approach will be no different in 2010.  We antici-

pate the market presenting us with challenges and opportunities that we will continue to address in 

the context of delivering strong shareholder value that is consistent with the bank’s long term goals 

and objectives. 

  

thank you again for your continued support of our bank. We look forward to working together and 

achieving what is possible for our customers, our shareholders and our communities.
 

Letter to Investors
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For the year  2009 2008 Change

performance net Income $543,233 $196,685 $346,548  
 Return on Average Assets 0.17% 0.07% 0.10%
 Return on Average equity 1.57% 0.76% 0.81%
 net Interest Margin 3.67% 3.63% 0.04%
 net Charge offs / Average loans 0.32% 0.25% 0.07%
 efficiency Ratio 78.70% 89.9% (11.20%)

per Common Share Data Basic earnings $        0.04  $         0.08 $    (0.04)
 Diluted earnings $        0.04 $         0.08 $    (0.04)
    
At December 31  2009 2008 Change

Balance Sheet loans, net $  268,867 $  225,213 $43,654
(in ‘000s) Deposits 276,610 230,284 46,326
 total Assets 355,260 299,446 55,814
 Stockholders equity 42,798 27,029 15,769
    
Asset Quality Allowance for loan losses / loans 1.05% 0.94% 0.09%
 non-performing Assets / total Assets 1.11% 1.29% (0.18%)

Capital tier-1 Risk-Based Capital 13.55% 9.44% 4.11%
 total Risk-Based Capital 14.56% 10.34% 4.22%
 leverage Ratio 11.32% 8.50% 2.82%
 Book Value per Common Share $      11.22 $       11.21 $       0.01
 tangible Book Value per Common Share $        9.84 $         9.76 $       0.08
 
Market price per share:   
     Closing $        9.50 $         9.55  

     High $      12.00 $       14.50  
     low $        9.00 $         9.40  

Financial Highlights
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This statement has not been reviewed, or confirmed for accuracy or relevance, by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

WashingtonFirst Bankshares Inc. and Subsidiary (the “Company”) makes forward-looking statements in the Manage-
ment’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, and other portions of this Annual 
Report that are subject to risks and uncertainties. These forward-looking statements include: statements of goals, inten-
tions, earnings expectations, and other expectations; estimates of risks and of future costs and benefits; assessments of 
probable loan losses; assessments of market risks; and statements of the ability to achieve financial and other goals. These 
forward-looking statements are subject to significant uncertainties because they are based upon or are affected by: manage-
ment’s estimates and projections of future interest rates, market behavior, and other economic conditions; future laws and 
regulations; and a variety of other matters which, by their nature, are subject to significant uncertainties. Because of these 
uncertainties, the Company’s actual future results may differ materially from those indicated. In addition, the Company’s 
past results of operations do not necessarily indicate its future results. Please also see the discussion of “Risk Factors” on 
page 16.



BUSINESS

WashingtonFirst Bankshares Inc. and Subsidiary, (the “Company”) was organized in 2009 under the laws of the Common-
wealth of Virginia as a bank holding company. The WashingtonFirst Bankshares is the parent company to WashingtonFirst 
Bank (the “Bank”) which was organized in 2004 under the laws of the District of Columbia to operate as a commercial bank. In 
2007, the Bank converted its charter to the Commonwealth of Virginia.  The headquarters for the Company is located at 11636 
Plaza America Drive, in Reston, Virginia.

The Bank offers a comprehensive range of financial services and products and specializes in providing financial services to small  
and medium sized businesses, professionals, and associated individuals, primarily in the greater Washington, DC Metropolitan Area. 
Deposits with the Bank are insured to the maximum amount provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The Bank  
provides its customers with personal customized service utilizing the latest technology and delivery channels.

Company revenues are derived from interest and fees received in connection with loans, deposits and investments. Interest paid on 
deposits and borrowings are the major expenses followed by administrative and operating expenses.

The economy, interest rates, monetary and fiscal policies of the federal government and regulatory policies have a significant  
influence on the Company and the industry as a whole.

The Company has experienced consistent growth and profitability since inception. Our goal is to become a leading provider of  
financial services in our market area. Our strategy is to understand the needs of our clients and to effectively deliver the  
corresponding financial services. We employ highly qualified personnel and emphasize the use of the latest technology in  
operations and the services we provide. Our marketing efforts are directed to prospective clients that value high quality service and 
that are, or have the potential to become, highly profitable.

Assets at year end totaled over $355.3 million and net income amounted to $543,233. The Company operates from eight branch  
offices located in Reston VA, Sterling VA, Great Falls VA, Washington DC (3), Greenbelt MD, and Oxon Hill MD; and online at  
www.washingtonfirstbank.com. Additional offices may be added from time to time based upon management’s ongoing analysis 
of the market and opportunities.

In March 2004, the Bank sold 932,611 shares of common stock at $10.00 per share, and netted approximately $9.3 million in new 
capital.

In April 2004, the Bank opened its first branch and began operations.

In November 2004, the Bank acquired a branch in Washington, DC from Greater Atlantic Bank.

In December 2004, the Bank sold 365,889 shares of common stock at $10.75 per share, and netted approximately $3.9 million in 
new capital.

In April 2005, the Bank acquired a branch in Sterling, VA from Greater Atlantic Bank.

In December 2005, the Bank sold 400,000 units, each unit consisting of one share of common stock and one warrant, at $12.00 per 
unit. The warrant had a strike price of $12.00 per share, with an original expiration of December 30, 2008. Through this offering, 
the Company netted approximately $4.7 million in new capital.

In July 2006, the Bank opened a branch in Reston, VA.

On September 15, 2006 the Bank acquired First Liberty Bancorp, and its subsidiary First Liberty National Bank for a  
combination of cash and stock. In connection with this acquisition, the Bank issued 538,917 shares of common stock plus warrants 
to purchase an additional 151,186 shares at a weighted average price of $11.99 per share on  or before February 28, 2013.

In July 2007, the Bank opened a branch in Great Falls, VA.

In December 2008, the Board approved a warrant extension for holders of 400,000 warrants expiring December 30, 2008.  
Warrant holders were given the opportunity to extend their existing warrants for 2 years, expiring December 30, 2010. In 
exchange for this extension, warrant holders were to pay the fair value of $1.00 for the extension. Of the 400,000 warrants  
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expiring on December 30, 2008, 106,600 warrants were exercised generating $1,279,200 in additional capital; 218,120  
warrants were extended generating $218,120 in additional capital; and 75,280 warrants expired. 

In January 2009, the Bank received $6.633 million in capital from the US Treasury Department under the Capital Purchase  
Program. This capital was in the form of 6,633 shares Series A preferred shares at 5% and 332 shares of Series B preferred shares 
at 9%. Both Series A and Series B preferred shares have a per share liquidation value of $1,000.

In February 2009, the Company was formed and subsequently acquired all the shares of the Bank in May 2009.

In October 2009, the Company received $6.842 million in capital from the US Treasury Department under the Capital Purchase  
Expansion Program. This capital was in the form of 6,842 shares of Series C preferred shares at 5% and has a per share liquida-
tion value of $1,000.

In November 2009, the Company sold 196,440 shares of common stock at $12.00 per share, and netting approximately  
$2.2 million in new capital after offering expenses.

Our Strategy — historical and prospective
We consider our business to be a young and emerging enterprise that is well positioned to be an effective competitor in the  
financial services industry. Our view of the financial services market is that community banks must be effective in providing quality,  
tailored services to their customers and stay clear of competing with large national institutions on a head-to-head basis for 
broad based consumer business. We started by organizing a de novo bank in 2004. The focus of the Bank is serving the small 
and medium-sized businesses and their associated professionals in the greater Washington, DC Metropolitan Area. We find that 
large national banks are ineffective at addressing this market as it is difficult to distinguish where a business’s financial needs 
stop and the personal financial needs of that business’s professionals start. We believe that the financial needs of emerging busi-
nesses and their owners are best served together.

A critical success factor is the practice of judgmental discipline of commercial lending based upon personnel and practices 
that help our clients strategize and grow their businesses from a financial perspective. As financial success takes hold in the 
business, personal goals and wealth objectives of the business owners become increasingly important. We have the personnel 
and know how to meet these changing needs. Lending is not enough in today’s environment. Credit services are supported by 
competitive deposit and cash management products and service excellence.

We expect to grow our commercial bank by continuing to hire and develop skilled personnel, and provide a sound infrastructure 
that facilitates the success of businesses, their owners and key personnel.

Lending Activities
The Bank’s lending activities involve commercial loans, commercial real estate loans, commercial and residential real estate  
construction loans, residential mortgage loans, home equity loans, and consumer loans. Loans originated by the Bank are  
classified as loans held for investment. 

At December 31, 2009, loans held for investment totaled $272.0 million compared to $227.5 million at year end 2008. The 
increase in loans is attributable to our customer base, referrals and new business. The Bank is predominantly a secured lender, 
with secured loans comprising over 99% of the total loan portfolio.

The Bank’s lending activities are subject to lending limits imposed by federal law. While differing limits apply in certain  
circumstances based on the type of loan, in general, the Bank’s lending limit to any one borrower on loans that are not fully 
secured by readily marketable or other permissible collateral is equal to 15% of the Bank’s capital and surplus. The Bank has 
established relationships with correspondent banks to participate in loans when loan amounts exceed the Bank’s legal lending 
limits or internal lending policies.

We have an established credit policy that includes procedures for underwriting each type of loan and lending personnel have been 
assigned specific authorities based upon their experience. Loans in excess of an individual loan officer’s authority are presented 
to our Executive Loan Committee (the “ELC”) for approval. The ELC meets weekly to facilitate a timely approval process for 
our clients. Loans are approved based on the borrower’s capacity for credit, collateral and sources of repayment. Loans are  
actively monitored to detect any potential performance issues. We manage our loans within the context of a risk grading system  
developed by management based upon extensive experience in administering loan portfolios in our market. Payment performance is  
carefully monitored for all loans. When loan repayment is dependent upon an operating business or investment real estate, periodic 
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financial reports, site visits and select asset verification procedures are used to ensure that we accurately rate the relative risk of our 
assets. Based upon criteria that are established by management and the Board of Directors, the degree of monitoring is escalated 
or relaxed for any given borrower based upon our assessment of the future repayment risk.

Loan Portfolio
The following outlines the composition of loans held for investment.

Commercial Loans represent 22.7% of our loan portfolio as of December 31, 2009. These loans are to businesses or individuals 
within our target market for business purposes. Typically the loan proceeds are used to support working capital and the acquisi-
tion of fixed assets of an operating business. Each loan is underwritten based upon our assessment of the obligor’s ability to 
generate operating cash flow in the future necessary to repay the loan. To address the risks associated with the uncertainties of 
future cash flow, these loans are generally well secured by assets owned by the business or its principal shareholders and the 
principal shareholders are typically required to guarantee the loan.

Real Estate Construction Loans, also known as construction and land development loans, comprise 17.6% of our held 
for investment loan portfolio, as of December 31, 2009. These loans generally fall into one of four types: first, loans to construct 
owner-occupied commercial buildings; second, loans to individuals that are ultimately used to acquire property and construct 
an owner-occupied residence; third, loans to builders for the purpose of acquiring property and constructing homes for sale to 
consumers; and fourth, loans to developers for the purpose of acquiring land to be developed into finished lots for the ultimate 
construction of residential or commercial buildings. Loans of these types are generally secured by the subject property within 
limits established by the Board of Directors based upon an assessment of market conditions and updated from time to time. The 
loans typically carry recourse to principal borrowers. In addition to the repayment risk associated with loans to individuals and 
businesses, loans in this category carry construction completion risk. To address this additional risk, loans of this type are sub-
ject to additional administrative procedures designed to verify and ensure progress of the project in accordance with allocated 
funding, project specifications and time frames.

Commercial Real Estate Loans, also known as Commercial Mortgages, represent 37.4% of our loan portfolio as of December 
31, 2009. These loans generally fall into one of three categories: first, loans supporting an owner-occupied commercial property;  
second, properties used by non-profit organizations such as churches or charter schools where repayment is dependent upon the 
cash flow of the non-profit organizations; and third, loans supporting a commercial property leased to third parties for invest-
ment. Commercial Real Estate Loans are secured by the subject property and underwritten to policy standards. Policy standards 
approved by the Board of Directors from time to time set forth, among other considerations, loan to value limits, cash flow 
coverage ratios, and the general creditworthiness of the obligors.

Residential Real Estate Loans includes loans secured by first or second mortgages on one to four family residential properties, 
generally extended to Bank clients, and represent 21.6% of the loan portfolio, as of December 31, 2009. Of this amount, the  
following sub-categories exist as a percentage of the whole Residential Real Estate Loan portfolio: Home Equity Lines of 
Credit (49.2%) and First Trust Mortgage Loans (50.8%). The Bank does not engage in sub-prime mortgage lending but they 
own a small pool that was purchased.

Brokered loans are underwritten and closed by a third party lender. The Bank is paid a fee for procuring such loans. In 2009,  
the Bank originated no brokered loans. In 2008, we originated $6,036,000 million in residential mortgage loans under various 
investor-funded programs. The risks associated with this activity are generally limited to losses or claims arising from fraud.

Home Equity Loans are extended primarily to borrowers in our target market. Real estate equity is the largest component of 
consumer wealth in our marketplace. Once approved, this consumer finance tool allows the borrower to access the equity in their 
home or investment property and use the proceeds for virtually any purpose. Home Equity Loans are most frequently secured by a 
second lien on residential property. First Trust Mortgage Loans are loans sercured by one to four family dwellings, where the pro-
ceeds are used to acquire or refinance the primary financing of owner-occupied and residential investment properties.  Consumer 
loans are loans to individuals for a stated purpose such as to finance a car or boat, debt refinance, or general working capital needs.  
These loans are generally extended in a single disbursement and repaid over a specified period of time.

Loans in the Residential Real Estate portfolio are underwritten to standards within a traditional consumer framework that is  
periodically reviewed and updated by our management and Board of Directors, and includes such considerations as repayment 
source and capacity, value of the underlying property, credit history, savings pattern and stability.
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Consumer Loans make up 0.7% of our loan portfolio as of December 31, 2009. Most loans are well secured with assets other than 
real estate, such as marketable securities or automobiles. Very few loans are unsecured. As a matter of operation, management 
discourages unsecured lending. Loans in this category are underwritten to standards within a traditional consumer framework that 
is periodically reviewed and updated by our management and Board of Directors, and includes such considerations as repayment 
source and capacity, collateral value, credit history, savings pattern, and stability.

Deposits
Deposits are the primary source of funding loan growth. Average deposits totaled $252.2 million up from $209.3 million, 
a $42.9 million increase over 2008. At December 31, 2009 deposits totaled $276.6 million compared to $230.3 million on  
December 31, 2008, an increase of $46.3 million.

Market Area
The Bank is headquartered in Reston, VA and serves the greater Washington, DC metropolitan area. This is a diverse and  
thriving urban and suburban area, with a median household income being one of the highest in the nation. With the influence of 
the federal government and its spending, the region is considered somewhat of a recession shelter.

Competition
The Bank competes with virtually all banks and financial institutions that offer services in its market area. Much of this  
competition comes from large financial institutions headquartered outside the region, each of which has greater financial and other 
resources to conduct large advertising campaigns and offer incentives. To attract business in this competitive environment, the  
Bank relies on personal contact by its officers and directors, local promotional activities, and the ability to provide personal  
tailored services to small businesses and professionals. In addition to providing full service banking, the Bank offers and  
promotes alternative and modern conveniences such as internet banking, automated clearinghouse transactions, remote deposit 
capture, and courier services for commercial clients.

Employees
At December 31, 2009, the Bank had 59 employees. None of the employees within the Bank is subject to a collective  
bargaining agreement. Management considers employee relations to be good.

SUPErvISION AND rEgULAtION

general
Financial institutions are extensively regulated under federal and state law.  Consequently, the growth and earnings performance 
of the Bank and the Company can be affected not only by management decisions and general economic conditions, but also by 
the statutes administered by, and the regulations and policies of, various governmental regulatory authorities including, but not 
limited to, the Virginia Bureau of Financial Institutions, the Federal Reserve, the FDIC, and federal and state taxing authorities.  
The effect of such statutes, regulations and policies can be significant, and cannot be predicted with a high degree of certainly.

Federal and state laws and regulations generally applicable to financial institutions regulate, among other things, the scope of 
business activities, investments, reserves against deposits, capital levels, transactions with affiliates, the nature and amount of 
collateral for loans, the establishment of branches, mergers and consolidations, and dividends.  The system of supervision and 
regulation applicable to the Bank and the Company establishes a comprehensive framework for their respective operations and 
is intended primarily for the protection of the FDIC’s deposit insurance fund, depositors and the banking system as a whole, 
rather than the shareholders of the Bank or the Company or creditors.

The following references to material statutes and regulations affecting the Bank and the Company are brief summaries thereof, 
do not purport to be complete, and are qualified in their entirety by reference to such statutes and regulations.  Any change in 
applicable law or regulations may have a material effect on the business of the Bank and the Company.

the Bank
General.  The Bank is a Virginia state-chartered bank that is not a member of the Federal Reserve System, and its deposits are 
insured by the FDIC.  The FDIC and the Virginia Bureau of Financial Institutions regulate and monitor its operations.  The 
Bank is required to file with the FDIC quarterly financial reports on its financial condition and results of operations and must 
comply with a wide variety of banking statutes and regulations.  The laws and regulations governing the Bank generally have 
been promulgated to protect depositors and the FDIC deposit insurance fund and not to protect shareholders.  Additionally, the 
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Bank must bear the cost of compliance with the reporting requirements and regulations; these costs can be significant and may 
have an effect on its financial performance.

The FDIC and the Virginia Bureau of Financial Institutions have the authority and responsibility to ensure that financial institu-
tions are managed in a safe and sound manner, including authority to prevent the continuation of unsound and unsafe practices 
and activities.  Additionally, they must generally approve significant business activities undertaken by financial institutions.  
Typical examples of transactions requiring approval include branch establishment, mergers, capital transactions and major 
organizational structure changes.  Obtaining regulatory approval for these types of activities can be time consuming, expensive 
and ultimately may not be successful.

The FDIC and the Virginia Bureau of Financial Institutions conduct periodic onsite and offsite examinations of the Bank.  
These examinations review areas such as capital adequacy, reserves, loan portfolio quality and management, consumer and 
other compliance issues, investments and management practices.  Based on such an evaluation, the regulatory authority may 
revalue the assets of the institution and require that it establish specific reserves to compensate for the difference between the 
regulator-determined value and the book value of such assets.  Regulators may exercise cease and desist or other supervisory 
powers over an insured bank if its actions represent unsafe or unsound practices or violations of law.

FDIC Insurance.  The FDIC insures the Bank’s deposits to a maximum amount per depositor based on specific regulations gov-
erning FDIC insurance.  Generally, the maximum amount per depositor is $100,000 (although this maximum amount has been 
temporarily increased to $250,000 per depositor until December 31, 2013) for all deposit categories except certain retirement 
accounts, which are insured up to $250,000 per owner.  Unlimited deposit insurance coverage is available until June 30, 2010 
for non-interest bearing transaction accounts at institutions participating in the FDIC’s Temporary Liquidity Guaranty Program, 
including the Bank.  

The Bank must comply with various FDIC rules and regulations and pay periodic assessment and other fees to the FDIC  
insurance fund for such deposit insurance protection.  The rates charged by the FDIC for deposit insurance will vary based on 
the Bank’s balance of insured deposits and the degree of risk the institution poses to the insurance fund.  The FDIC may change 
the rates for insurance based on regulatory factors and at its discretion to ensure insurance fund solvency.  Increases in FDIC 
insurance charges will adversely impact the Bank.

Bank Capital Adequacy Guidelines.  The FDIC has adopted a risk-based approach regarding capital adequacy.  Risk-based 
capital measurements are used to assess the adequacy of the Bank’s capital based upon the risk profile associated with assets 
and off-balance sheet items.

The capital of an organization is grouped into two major categories, Tier 1 and Tier 2.  Generally, Tier 1 capital consists 
of common shareholders’ equity adjusted for the impacts of the market valuation adjustment recorded as a portion of  
shareholders’ equity and further adjusted for the effects of goodwill, disallowed portions of deferred taxes, disallowed portions 
of servicing rights and non-qualifying perpetual preferred stock. Tier 2 capital includes hybrid capital instruments, qualifying 
subordinated debt, certain preferred stock and a portion of the allowance for loan losses.  The sum of Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 
capital is “total risk-based capital”.

All assets and off-balance sheet items, such as letters of credit, commitments, interest rate swaps and other derivative  
instruments, are assigned risk categories ranging from .0% to 200%.  The assets are multiplied by the assigned risk factor to 
determine risk-weighted assets for the organization.  The risk-weighted assets are used in conjunction with the Tier 1 and Tier 
2 capital positions of an organization to assess its capital adequacy.

In addition to the risk-based capital ratios, the regulators have established a Tier 1 Leverage Ratio to monitor capital adequacy.  
This ratio compares Tier 1 capital to quarterly average assets as adjusted for disallowed items such as goodwill and deferred 
tax assets.

Pursuant to established minimum capital ratios, the Bank must have and maintain a Tier I Risk-Based Capital Ratio of at least 
4%, a Total Risk-Based Capital Ratio of 8% and a Tier 1 Leverage Ratio of 3% (for the most highly rated banks; other organiza-
tions must have a higher Tier 1 Leverage Ratio).  The regulators may establish minimum capital ratios above those described if 
deemed appropriate by such regulator, in its discretion, in light of the circumstances of a particular bank.

The prompt corrective action regulations, which were promulgated to implement certain statutory provisions, also effectively 
impose capital requirements on insured banks, by subjecting banks with less capital to increasingly stringent supervisory  
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actions.  For purposes of the prompt corrective action regulations, a bank shall be deemed to be: (i) “well capitalized” if it 
has a Total Risk-Based Capital Ratio of 10% or more, a Tier 1 Risk Based Capital Ratio of 6% or more, a Tier 1 Leverage 
Ratio of 5% or more and is not subject to any written capital order or directive; (ii) “adequately capitalized” if it has a Total  
Risk-Based Capital Ratio of 8% or more, a Tier I Risk-Based Capital Ratio of 4% or more, a Tier l Leverage Ratio of 4% or 
more and does not meet the criteria for a well capitalized bank; (iii) “undercapitalized” if it has a Total Risk-Based Capital Ratio 
of less than 8%, a Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital Ratio of less than 4%, or a Tier 1 Leverage Ratio of less than 4%; (iv) “significantly 
undercapitalized” if it has a Total Risk-Based Capital Ratio of less than 6%, a Tier I Risk-Based Capital Raito of less than 3%, 
or a Tier I Leverage Ratio of less than 3%; or (v) “critically undercapitalized” if it has a ratio of tangible equity to total assets 
that is equal to or less than 2%.

Regulators have broad powers to take prompt corrective action to resolve problems of insured depository institutions.  Under 
the provisions of the prompt corrective action regulations, for example, an “undercapitalized” bank is subject to a limit on 
the interest it may pay on deposits.  Also, an undercapitalized bank cannot make any capital distribution, including paying a 
dividend (with some exceptions), or pay any management fee (other than compensation to an individual in his or her capacity 
as an officer or employee of the bank).  Such a bank also must submit a capital restoration plan to its regulator for approval, 
restrict total asset growth and obtain regulatory approval prior to making any acquisition, opening any new branch office or 
engaging in any new line of business.  An undercapitalized bank may also be subject to other, discretionary, regulatory actions.  
Additional mandatory and discretionary regulatory actions apply to “significantly undercapitalized” and “critically undercapi-
talized” banks.  Failure of a bank to maintain the required capital could result in such bank being declared insolvent and closed.  
The extent of the action depends on the capital adequacy and other features of the organization.  As of December 31, 2009, the 
Bank met the standards to be considered “well capitalized.”

Payment of Cash Dividends and Distribution of Assets.  It is anticipated that dividends paid by the Bank to the Company will 
be the Company’s principal source of operating funds.  The Bank is subject to regulatory restrictions regarding the payment 
of cash dividends.  Under such restrictions, the Bank may not, without the prior approval of regulators, declare dividends in 
excess of the sum of the current year’s earnings plus the retained earnings of the two prior years. The regulators generally 
have indicated that payment of cash dividends should be consistent with the bank’s growth plans, prospective rate of earnings,  
ongoing capital needs, asset quality and the overall financial condition.  The Bank generated start-up losses in 2004 and con-
tinued to have negative retained earnings through the third quarter of 2009. As of December 31, 2009, the Bank has positive 
retained earnings, although the Board of Directors of the Bank has not declared any dividends. The Bank’s policy concerning 
dividends to common Shareholders is to only pay dividends as and when determined by the Board of Directors after consider-
ation of the earnings, general economic conditions, financial conditions of the business, and other factors that may appropri-
ately be considered in determing dividend policy.

Because the Company is a legal entity separate and distinct from its subsidiaries, the Company’s right to participate in the 
distribution of assets of any subsidiary upon the subsidiary’s liquidation or reorganization will be subject to the prior claims 
of the subsidiary’s creditors.  In the event of a liquidation or other resolution of an insured depository institution, the claims of 
depositors and other general or subordinated creditors are entitled to a priority of payment over the claims of holders of any 
obligation of the institution to its shareholders, including any depository institution holding company (such as the Company) 
or any shareholder or creditor thereof.  Also the claims of Company common shareholders would be subordinate to the claims 
of the holders of preferred stock.

USA Patriot Act.  The USA Patriot Act became effective on October 26, 2001 and provides for the facilitation of information 
sharing among governmental entities and financial institutions for the purpose of combating terrorism and money laundering.  
Among other provisions, the USA Patriot Act permits financial institutions, upon providing notice to the Treasury, to share 
information with one another in order to better identify and report to the federal government concerning activities that may 
involve money laundering or terrorists’ activities.  The Act is considered a significant banking law in terms of information 
disclosure regarding certain customer transactions.  Although it does create additional reporting and other obligations, the USA 
Patriot Act has not materially affected the Bank’s products, services, or other business activities.

Branching and Interstate Banking.  The federal banking agencies are authorized to approve interstate bank acquisitions 
without regard to whether such transactions are prohibited by the law of any state, subject to various conditions.  Also, the  
Commonwealth of Virginia statutes permit interstate bank branching transactions subject to various conditions.

Monetary Policy.  The policies of regulatory authorities, including the monetary policy of the Federal Reserve, have a 
significant effect on the operating results of banks and bank holding companies.  Among the means available to the Federal 
Reserve to regulate the supply of bank credit are open market purchases and sales of U.S. government securities, changes in 
the discount rate on borrowings from the Federal Reserve System and changes in reserve requirements with respect to deposits.  
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These activities are used in varying combinations to influence overall growth and distribution of bank loans, investments and 
deposits on a national basis, and their use may affect interest rates charged on loans or paid for deposits.

Federal Reserve monetary policies and the fiscal policies of the federal government have materially affected the operating 
results of commercial banks in the past and are expected to continue to do so in the future.  The Company cannot predict the 
nature of future monetary and fiscal policies and the effect of such policies on the future business and earnings of the Company 
or its subsidiaries.

Community Reinvestment Act.  The Community Reinvestment Act (“CRA”) requires that federal banking regulators evaluate 
the record of financial institutions in meeting the credit needs of their local communities, including low and moderate-income 
neighborhoods, consistent with safe and sound operation of the financial institution.  These factors are also considered in  
evaluating mergers, acquisitions and applications to open a branch.  Federal banking agencies are required to make public a 
rating of a bank’s performance under the CRA.  In the case of a bank holding company, the CRA performance record of the 
banks involved in the transaction are reviewed in connection with the filing of an application to acquire ownership or control of 
shares or assets of a bank or to merge with any other bank holding company.  An unsatisfactory record can substantially delay 
or block the transaction.  The Bank received a “Satisfactory” CRA rating in its latest CRA examination.

Regulatory Enforcement Action.  Banking laws and regulations provide substantial enforcement powers to banking regula-
tors.  The enforcement authority includes, among other things, the ability to terminate deposit insurance, to assess civil money  
penalties, to issue cease and desist or removal orders and to initiate injunctive actions against banking organizations and 
institution-affiliated parties. In general, these enforcement actions may be initiated for violations of laws and regulations and 
for unsafe or unsound banking practices.  Other actions or inactions may provide the basis for enforcement action, including 
misleading or untimely reports filed with regulatory authorities.

the Company
General.  The Company is registered as a bank holding company under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended 
(the “BHC Act”), and is subject to regulation and examination by the Federal Reserve.  The Federal Reserve has jurisdiction 
under the BHC Act to approve any bank or nonbank acquisition, merger or consolidation proposed by a bank holding company.  
The BHC Act generally limits the activities of a bank holding company and its subsidiaries to that of banking, managing or 
controlling banks, or any other activity which is so closely related to banking, or to managing or controlling banks, as to be a 
proper incident thereof.

There are a number of obligations and restrictions imposed on bank holding companies and their non-banking subsidiaries that 
are designed to prohibit activities which may represent unsafe and unsound banking practices or which constitute violations 
of laws or regulations.  Regulatory authorities can assess civil money penalties for certain activities conducted on a knowing 
and reckless basis, or for participation in an unsafe or unsound practice or breach of fiduciary duty, if those activities caused a 
substantial loss to a depository institution or gain to an individual.

Under a policy of the Federal Reserve with respect to bank holding company operations, a bank holding company is required to 
serve as a source of financial strength to its subsidiary depository institutions and to commit resources to support such institutions 
in circumstances where it might not do so absent such policy.  A bank holding company’s failure to meet its obligations to serve as a 
source of strength to its subsidiary banks may be considered by the Federal Reserve to be an unsafe and unsound banking practice.

The Company is also registered in Virginia with the Virginia Bureau of Financial Institutions under the financial institution 
holding company laws of Virginia.  Accordingly, the Company and the Bank are subject to regulation and supervision by the 
Virginia Bureau of Financial Institutions.

The Company will become subject to the regulatory capital requirements of the Federal Reserve if the total consolidated assets 
of the Company equal $500 million or more.

The Federal Reserve has adopted a system using risk-based capital guidelines to evaluate the capital adequacy of bank  
holding companies.  Under the guidelines, specific categories of assets are assigned different risk weights, based generally on  
the perceived credit risk of the asset. These risk weights are multiplied by corresponding asset balances to determine a  
“risk-weighted’’ asset base.  The guidelines require a minimum total risk-based capital ratio of 8.0% (of which at least 4.0% is 
required to consist of Tier 1 capital elements).  Total capital is the sum of Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital.
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In addition to the risk-based capital guidelines, the Federal Reserve uses a leverage ratio as an additional tool to evaluate the 
capital adequacy of bank holding companies.  The leverage ratio is a company’s Tier 1 capital divided by its average total con-
solidated assets.  Certain highly rated bank holding companies may maintain a minimum leverage ratio of 3.0%, but other bank 
holding companies are required to maintain a leverage ratio of at least 4.0%.
The federal banking agencies’ risk-based and leverage ratios are minimum supervisory ratios generally applicable to banking 
organizations that meet certain specified criteria.  The federal bank regulatory agencies may set capital requirements for a par-
ticular banking organization that are higher than the minimum ratios when circumstances warrant.  Federal Reserve guidelines 
also provide that banking organizations experiencing internal growth or making acquisitions will be expected to maintain 
strong capital positions substantially above the minimum supervisory levels, without significant reliance on intangible assets.

Imposition of Liability for Undercapitalized Subsidiaries.  As described above, bank regulators are required to take “prompt 
corrective action” to resolve problems associated with insured depository institutions whose capital declines below certain 
levels.  In the event an institution becomes “undercapitalized,” it must submit a capital restoration plan.  The capital restoration 
plan will not be accepted by the regulators unless each company having control of the undercapitalized institution guarantees 
the subsidiary’s compliance with the capital restoration plan up to a certain specified amount.  Any such guarantee from a  
depository institution’s holding company is entitled to a priority of payment in bankruptcy.

The aggregate liability of the holding company of an undercapitalized bank is limited to the lesser of 5% of the institution’s 
assets at the time it became undercapitalized or the amount necessary to cause the institution to be adequately capitalized.  The 
bank regulators have greater power in situations where an institution becomes significantly or critically undercapitalized or 
fails to submit a capital restoration plan.  For example, a bank holding company controlling such an institution can be required 
to obtain prior Federal Reserve approval of proposed dividends, or might be required to consent to a consolidation or to divest 
the troubled institution or other affiliates.

Acquisitions by Bank Holding Companies.  The BHC Act requires every bank holding company to obtain the prior approval of 
the Federal Reserve before it may acquire all or substantially all of the assets of any bank, or ownership or control of any voting 
shares of any bank, if after such acquisition it would own or control, directly or indirectly, more than 5% of the voting shares of 
such bank.  In approving bank acquisitions by bank holding companies, the Federal Reserve is required to consider the financial 
and managerial resources and future prospects of the bank holding company and the banks concerned, the convenience and 
needs of the communities to be served, and various competitive factors.

The Change in Bank Control Act prohibits a person or group of persons from acquiring “control” of a bank holding company 
unless the Federal Reserve has been notified and has not objected to the transaction.  Any entity is required to obtain the ap-
proval of the Federal Reserve under the BHC Act before acquiring 25% (5% in the case of an acquiror that is a bank holding 
company) or more of a bank holding company’s or bank’s voting securities, or otherwise obtaining control or a controlling 
influence over the company or bank.  Under a rebuttable presumption established by the regulations of the Federal Reserve, the 
acquisition of 10% or more of a class of voting stock of a bank holding company, would, under the circumstances set forth in 
the presumption, constitute acquisition of control of a bank holding company.  The statute and regulations set forth standards 
and certain presumptions concerning acquisition of control.

In most circumstances, an entity that owns 25% or more of the total equity of a banking organization owns enough of the capital 
resources to have a controlling influence over such banking organization for purposes of the BHC Act.  On September 22, 2008, 
the Federal Reserve issued a policy statement on equity investments in banks and bank holding companies.  The key statutory 
limit restricting a non-controlling investor to 24.9% of voting securities for purposes of the BHC Act remains, but the policy 
statement loosens some restrictions on entities within this limit.

Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008.  On October 14, 2008, the Treasury announced the CPP under the Emergency 
Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 (the “EESA”). Pursuant to the CPP, Treasury would make preferred stock investments in partici-
pating financial institutions.  As a CPP participant, the Company is required to comply with the executive compensation and corporate 
governance requirements of the EESA, as amended by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (the “ARRA”).  These 
requirements generally impose restrictions on the amount and type of compensation the Company may pay to its executive officers.  
The EESA includes restrictions on incentive compensation that might encourage executive officers to take unnecessary and exces-
sive risks, provisions for completing risk assessment reviews of the Company’s incentive compensation arrangements, “clawback” 
of certain compensation paid to the Company’s executive officers, limitations on “golden parachute” payments, limitations on the  
deductibility of certain compensation greater than $500,000 annually, and requirements for certain of the Company’s executive  
officers to agree to modify their compensation and other benefits to the extent necessary to comply with the EESA’s requirements.
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American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.  The ARRA, which was enact on; February 17, 2009, amends certain 
provisions of the EESA and contains expansive new restrictions on executive compensation for financial institutions and other 
companies participating in the CPP, including the Company.  The ARRA continues the same executive compensation and 
corporate governance requirements of the EESA and also adds substantially to those restrictions in several areas. The ARRA 
includes prohibitions on paying bonus or incentive compensation to the most highly compensated Company employee, except 
for limited amounts of restricted stock with terms that comply with the ARRA, stricter restrictions on “golden parachute” pay-
ments, broader “clawback” requirements, reporting and certification requirements for the Company’s Chief Executive Officier 
and Chief Financial Officer, requirements for the Company to adopt a policy regarding excessive or luxury expenditures, and 
requirements for the Treasury to review bonus and other incentive compensation paid to certain exceutive officers before the 
ARRA was enacted. The ARRA directs the Treasury to issue rules and regulations implementing these restrictions. On June 15, 
2009, the Treasury issued its Interim Final Rule: TARP Standards for Compensation and Corporate Governance setting forth 
guidance and standards for compliance with compensation and corporate governance prescriptions contained in the ARRA.

Capital Purchase Program.  While the preferred stock is outstanding under the CPP, the Company may not declare or pay 
dividends on any junior stock unless all accrued and unpaid dividends for all past quarterly dividend periods have been declared 
and paid in full.  In addition, prior to the third anniversary of purchase of the Company’s preferred stock by the Treasury, the 
Company may not increase its dividend on common shares without the Treasury’s consent, unless the Treasury no longer holds 
of the Company’s preferred stock.  During the period beginning on the third anniversary of the purchase of the Company’s  
preferred stock by the Treasury and ending on the tenth anniversary thereof, the Company may not increase its dividend  
on common shares more than 3% per year without the Treasury’s consent, unless the Treasury no longer holds any of the 
Company’s preferred stock.  Also, while the preferred stock is outstanding under the CPP, the Company’s ability to repurchase 
shares of its capital stock is restricted (with certain exceptions).

In addition to the dividend and repurchase restrictions, the Company is required to comply with the executive compensation 
and corporate governance requirements of the EESA, as amended by the ARRA, and related regulations.  The Treasury has the 
right to change the terms of the CPP documents at any time to reflect any additional changes in federal legislation or regulation.
Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act.  The GLB Act implemented major changes to the statutory framework for providing banking  
and other financial services in the United States.  The GLB Act, among other things, eliminated many of the restrictions on  
affiliations among banks and securities firms, insurance firms and other financial service providers.  A bank holding company 
that qualifies as a financial holding company may engage in activities that are financial in nature or incidental or complimentary 
to financial activities.  The activities that the GLB Act expressly lists as financial in nature include insurance activities, provid-
ing financial and investment advisory services, underwriting services and limited merchant banking activities.

To become eligible for these expanded activities, a bank holding company must qualify as a financial holding company.  To 
qualify as a financial holding company, each insured depository institution controlled by the bank holding company must be 
well-capitalized, well-managed and have at least a satisfactory rating under the CRA.  In addition, the bank holding company 
must file with the Federal Reserve a declaration of its intention to become a financial holding company.  Presently, we have no 
plans to become a financial holding company.

Although the GLB Act is considered one of the most significant banking laws since Depression-era statutes were enacted, it has 
not, and we do not expect it to, materially affect our products, services, operations or other business activities.  To the extent  
that it allows banks, securities firms and insurance firms to affiliate, the financial services industry may experience further 
consolidation.  The GLB Act may have the result of increasing competition that we face from larger institutions and other  
companies offering financial products and services, many of which may have substantially greater financial resources.

Limits on Dividends and Other Payments.  Virginia state law restricts distributions of dividends to shareholders of the 
Company.  The Company’s shareholders will be entitled to receive dividends as declared by the Company’s board of directors 
in accordance with Section 13.1-653 of the Code of Virginia.  Generally, distributions are made out of surplus, or if there is 
no surplus, out of net profits for the fiscal year in which the dividend is declared and/or the preceding fiscal year.  Dividend 
payments therefore may be limited in accordance with these provisions of the Virginia Stock Corporation Act as well as the 
Company’s articles of incorporation.  The Company’s ability to pay dividends to its shareholders will depend on dividends paid 
to it by the Bank.  The Bank’s ability to pay dividends is subject to the restrictions previously described.

It is the policy of the Federal Reserve that bank holding companies should pay cash dividends on common stock only out of  
income available over the past year and only if prospective earnings retention is consistent with the organization’s expected 
future needs and financial condition.  The policy provides that bank holding companies should not maintain a level of cash 
dividends that undermines the bank holding company’s ability to serve as a source of strength to its banking subsidiaries.

Annual Report 2009 | 15



rISK FACtOrS

Our future success will depend on our ability to compete effectively in the highly competitive financial services industry.

We face substantial competition in all phases of our operations from a variety of different competitors. In particular, there is 
very strong competition for financial services in the greater Washington, D.C. Metropolitan area in which we conduct our busi-
ness. We compete with commercial banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations, mortgage banking firms, consumer 
finance companies, money market funds and other mutual funds, as well as other local and community, super-regional, national 
and international financial institutions that operate offices in our primary market areas and elsewhere. Our future growth and 
success will depend on our ability to compete effectively in this highly competitive financial services environment.

Many of our competitors are well-established, larger financial institutions and many offer products and services that we do not. 
Many have substantially greater resources, name recognition and market presence that benefit them in attracting business. While 
we believe we compete effectively with these other financial institutions in our primary markets, we may face a competitive  
disadvantage as a result of our smaller size, smaller asset base, lack of geographic diversification and inability to spread our  
marketing costs across a broader market. If we have to raise interest rates paid on deposits or lower interest rates charged on 
loans to compete effectively, our net interest margin and income could be negatively affected. Failure to compete effectively to 
attract new or to retain existing, clients may reduce or limit our net income and our market share and may adversely affect our 
results of operations, financial condition and growth.

Our profitability depends on interest rates generally, and we may be adversely affected by changes in government monetary policy.

Our profitability depends in substantial part on our net interest margin, which is the difference between the rates we receive  
on loans and investments and the rates we pay for deposits and other sources of funds. Our net interest margin depends on many 
factors that are partly or completely outside of our control, including competition, federal economic, monetary and fiscal policies, 
and economic conditions generally. Our net interest income will be adversely affected if market interest rates change so that the 
interest we pay on deposits and borrowings increases faster than the interest we earn on loans and investments.

Changes in interest rates, particularly by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, which implements national 
monetary policy in order to mitigate recessionary and inflationary pressures, also affect the value of our loans. In setting its 
policy, the Federal Reserve may utilize techniques such as: (i) engaging in open market transactions in United States govern-
ment securities; (ii) setting the discount rate on member bank borrowings; and (iii) determining reserve requirements. These 
techniques may have an adverse effect on our deposit levels, net interest margin, loan demand or our business and operations. 
In addition, an increase in interest rates could adversely affect borrowers’ ability to pay the principal or interest on existing 
loans or reduce their desire to borrow more money. This may lead to an increase in our nonperforming assets, a decrease in loan 
originations, or a reduction in the value of and income from our loans, any of which could have a material and negative effect 
on our results of operations. We try to minimize our exposure to interest rate risk, but we are unable to completely eliminate this 
risk. Fluctuations in market rates and other market disruptions are neither predictable nor controllable and may have a material 
and negative effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our profitability depends significantly on local economic conditions.

As a lender, we are exposed to the risk that our loan clients may not repay their loans according to their terms and any collateral 
securing payment may be insufficient to fully compensate us for the outstanding balance of the loan plus the costs we incur dispos-
ing of the collateral. Although we have collateral for most of our loans, that collateral can fluctuate in value and may not always 
cover the outstanding balance on the loan. With most of our loans concentrated in the greater Washington, DC Metropolitan area, 
a decline in local economic conditions could adversely affect the values of our real estate collateral. Consequently, a decline in  
local economic conditions may have a greater effect on our earnings and capital than on the earnings and capital of larger  
financial institutions whose real estate loan portfolios are more geographically diverse.

In addition to assessing the financial strength and cash flow characteristics of each of our borrowers, the Bank often secures 
loans with real estate collateral. At December 31, 2009, approximately 87.9% of our bank’s loans have real estate as a primary 
or secondary component of collateral. The real estate collateral in each case provides an alternate source of repayment in the 
event of default by the borrower and may deteriorate in value during the time the credit is extended. If we are required to  
liquidate the collateral securing a loan to satisfy the debt during a period of reduced real estate values, our earnings and capital 
could be adversely affected.
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Our business strategy includes the continuation of our growth plans, and our financial condition and results of operations could 
be negatively affected if we fail to grow or fail to manage our growth effectively.

We intend to continue to grow in our existing banking markets (internally and through additional offices) and to expand into 
new markets as appropriate opportunities arise. Our prospects must be considered in light of the risks, expenses and difficulties 
frequently encountered by companies that are experiencing growth. We cannot assure you we will be able to expand our market 
presence in our existing markets or successfully enter new markets, or that any expansion will not adversely affect our results of 
operations. Failure to manage our growth effectively could have a material adverse effect on our business, future prospects, finan-
cial condition or results of operations, and could adversely affect our ability to successfully implement our business strategy. Also, 
if our growth occurs more slowly than anticipated or declines, our operating results could be materially affected in an adverse way.

Our ability to successfully grow will depend on a variety of factors, including the continued availability of desirable business  
opportunities, the competitive responses from other financial institutions in our market areas and our ability to manage our 
growth. While we believe we have the management resources and internal systems in place to successfully manage our future 
growth, there can be no assurance growth opportunities will be available or growth will be successfully managed.
We may face risks with respect to future acquisitions.

As a strategy, we have sought to increase the size of our Bank by pursuing business development opportunities, and we have 
grown rapidly since our incorporation. We may acquire other financial institutions, or parts of those entities, in the future.  
Acquisitions and mergers involve a number of risks, including:

• the time and costs associated with identifying and evaluating potential acquisitions and merger partners;
•  the estimates and judgments used to evaluate credit, operations, management and market risks with respect to 

the target entity may not be accurate;
•  the time and costs of evaluating new markets, hiring experienced management opening new offices, and the 

time lags between these activities and generating of sufficient assets and deposits to support the costs of the 
expansion;

• our ability to finance an acquisition and possible ownership or economic dilution to our current shareholders;
•  the diversion of our management’s attention to the negotiation of a transaction, and the integration of the  

operations and personnel of the combining businesses;
• entry into new markets where we lack experience;
• the introduction of new products and services into our business;
•  the incurrence and possible impairment of goodwill associated with an acquisition and possible adverse short-term  

effects on our results of operations; and
• the potential loss of key employees and clients.

We may incur substantial costs to expand, and we can give no assurance such expansion will result in the levels of profits we 
seek. There can be no assurance that integration efforts for any future mergers or acquisitions will be successful. Also, we may 
issue equity securities, including common stock and securities convertible into shares of our common stock, in connection with 
future acquisitions, which could cause ownership and economic dilution to our current shareholders. There is no assurance that, 
following any future merger or acquisition, our integration efforts will be successful or our company, after giving effect to the 
acquisition, will achieve profits comparable to or better than our historical experience.

Our allowance for loan losses could become inadequate and reduce our earnings and capital.

We maintain an allowance for loan losses that we believe is adequate for absorbing any potential losses in our loan portfolio.  
Management conducts a periodic review and consideration of the loan portfolio to determine the amount of the allowance  
for loan losses based upon general market conditions, credit quality of the loan portfolio and performance of our clients relative  
to their financial obligations with us. The amount of future losses, however, is susceptible to changes in economic and other 
market conditions, including changes in interest rates and collateral values, which are beyond our control, and these future losses 
may exceed our current estimates. Our allowance for loan losses at December 31, 2009 was $2.9 million. Although we believe the  
allowance for loan losses is adequate to absorb probable losses in our loan portfolio, we cannot predict such losses or guarantee  
that our allowance will be adequate in the future. Excessive loan losses could have a material impact on our financial performance  
and reduce our earnings and capital.
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Liquidity needs could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Our primary source of funds is client deposits and loan repayments. While scheduled loan repayments are a relatively stable 
source of funds, they are subject to the ability of borrowers to repay the loans. The ability of borrowers to repay loans can be  
adversely affected by a number of factors, including changes in economic conditions, adverse trends or events affecting business 
industry groups, reductions in real estate values or markets, business closings or lay-offs, inclement weather, natural disasters and 
international instability. Additionally, deposit levels may be affected by a number of factors, including rates paid by competitors, 
general interest rate levels, regulatory capital requirements, returns available to clients on alternative investments and general  
economic conditions. Accordingly, we may be required from time to time to rely on secondary sources of liquidity to meet withdrawal  
demands or otherwise fund operations. Such sources include FHLB advances, sales of securities and loans, and federal funds 
lines of credit from correspondent banks, as well as out-of-market time deposits. While we believe that these sources are currently  
adequate, there can be no assurance they will be sufficient to meet future liquidity demands, particularly if we continue to grow 
and experience increasing loan demand. We may be required to slow or discontinue loan growth, capital expenditures or other  
investments or liquidate assets should such sources not be adequate.

We are subject to extensive regulation that could limit or restrict our activities and adversely affect our earnings.

We operate in a highly regulated industry, and are subject to extensive regulation and supervision by Commonwealth of  
Virginia and the FDIC. Our compliance with these regulations is costly and restricts certain of our activities, including pay-
ment of dividends, mergers and acquisitions, investments, loans and interest rates charged, interest rates paid on deposits and 
locations of offices. We are also subject to capitalization guidelines established by our regulators, which require us to maintain 
adequate capital to support our growth. Many of these regulations are intended to protect depositors and the FDIC’s Deposit 
Insurance Fund rather than our shareholders.

SOX, and the related rules and regulations promulgated by the SEC and NASDAQ may be applicable to us in the future,  
have increased the scope, complexity and cost of corporate governance, reporting and disclosure practices, including the cost of 
completing our audit and maintaining our internal controls. As a result, we may experience greater compliance costs.

The laws and regulations that apply to us could change at any time. We cannot predict whether or what form of proposed statute 
or regulation will be adopted or the extent to which such adoption may affect our business. Regulatory changes may increase our 
costs, limit the types of financial services and products we may offer and/or increase the ability of non-banks to offer competing 
financial services and products and thus place other entities that are not subject to similar regulation in stronger, more favorable 
competitive positions, which could adversely affect our growth and our ability to operate profitably. Failure to comply with exist-
ing or new laws, regulations or policies could result in sanctions by regulatory agencies, civil money penalties and/or reputation 
damage, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our recent results may not be indicative of our future results.

We may not be able to sustain our historical rate of growth or may not even be able to grow our business at all. In addition, 
our recent and rapid growth may distort some of our historical financial ratios and statistics. In the future, we may not have the 
benefit of several recently favorable factors, such as a generally stable interest rate environment, a strong real estate market, 
or the ability to find suitable expansion opportunities. Various factors, such as economic conditions, regulatory and legislative 
considerations and competition, may also impede or prohibit our ability to expand our market presence. If we experience a 
significant decrease in our historical rate of growth, our results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected 
due to a high percentage of our operating costs being fixed expenses.

Our small- to medium-sized business target market may have fewer financial resources to weather a downturn in the economy.

We target our commercial development and marketing strategy primarily to serve the banking and financial services needs of 
small- and medium-sized businesses. These businesses generally have fewer financial resources in terms of capital or borrow-
ing capacity than larger entities. If general economic conditions negatively impact this economic sector in the markets in which 
we operate, our results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected.

We depend on the accuracy and completeness of information about clients and counterparties.

In deciding whether to extend credit or enter into other transactions with clients and counterparties, we may rely on information 
furnished to us by or on behalf of clients and counterparties, including financial statements and other financial information. We also 

18 | WashingtonFirst Bankshares



may rely on representations of clients and counterparties as to the accuracy and completeness of that information and, with respect to 
financial statements, on reports of independent auditors. For example, in deciding whether to extend credit to clients, we may assume 
that a customer’s audited financial statements conform with GAAP and present fairly, in all material respects, the financial condition, 
results of operations and cash flows of the customer. Our financial condition and results of operations could be negatively impacted 
to the extent we rely on financial statements or other information that does not comply with GAAP or is materially misleading.

Negative public opinion could damage our reputation and adversely impact our earnings. Reputation risk, or the risk to our 
business, earnings and capital from negative public opinion, is inherent in our business. Negative public opinion can result from 
our actual or alleged conduct in any number of activities, including lending practices, corporate governance and acquisitions, 
and from actions taken by government regulators and community organizations in response to those activities. Negative public 
opinion can adversely affect our ability to keep and attract clients and employees and can expose us to litigation and regulatory 
action. Although we take steps to minimize reputation risk in dealing with our clients and communities, this risk will always be 
present given the nature of our business.

We depend on the services of key personnel, and a loss of any of those personnel could disrupt our operations and result in 
reduced revenues.

Our success depends upon the continued service of our senior management team and upon our ability to attract and retain  
qualified financial services personnel. Competition for qualified employees is intense. In our experience, it can take a significant 
period of time to identify and hire personnel with the combination of skills and attributes required in carrying out our strategy. 
If we lose the services of our key personnel, or are unable to attract additional qualified personnel, our business, financial  
condition, results of operations and cash flows could be materially adversely affected.

We may need to invest in new technology to compete effectively, and that could have a negative effect on our operating results 
and the value of our common stock.

The market for financial services, including banking services, is increasingly affected by advances in technology, including  
developments in telecommunications, data processing, computers, automation and Internet-based banking. We depend on third-
party vendors for portions of our data processing services. In addition to our ability to finance the purchase of those services and in-
tegrate them into our operations, our ability to offer new technology-based services depends on our vendors’ abilities to provide and 
support those services. Future advances in technology may require us to incur substantial expenses that adversely affect our operat-
ing results, and our limited capital resources may make it impractical or impossible for us to keep pace with competitors possessing 
greater capital resources. Our ability to compete successfully in our banking markets may depend on the extent to which we and our 
vendors are able to offer new technology-based services and on our ability to integrate technological advances into our operations.

The Company’s ability to pay dividends is subject to regulatory restrictions and the need to maintain sufficient capital. The  
Company’s only source of funds with which to pay dividends to its shareholders is dividends received from the Bank, and the 
Bank’s ability to pay dividends is limited by its own obligations to maintain sufficient capital and regulatory restrictions.  If these 
regulatory requirements are not satisfied, we will be unable to pay dividends on our common stock. The Company has not paid 
common dividends in its history, and does not have plans to pay dividends to our common shareholders in the foreseeable future.

PrOPErtIES

The Bank leases offices and branch locations that are used in the normal course of business. No properties are owned by 
the Bank. No properties or land are owned by the Company.  The principal executive office of the Bank is located at 11646 
Plaza America Drive, Reston, Virginia. In addition, the Bank leases offices in Sterling, VA; Great Falls, VA; Washington, DC;  
Greenbelt, MD; and Oxon Hill, MD. All of the leased properties are in good operating condition and are adequate for the  
Company’s present and anticipated future needs.

LEgAL PrOCEEDINgS

The Bank is a party to legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. Management is of the opinion that these 
legal proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the Bank’s financial condition or results of operations. From time 
to time the Bank may initiate legal actions against borrowers in connection with collecting defaulted loans. Such actions are not 
considered material by management unless otherwise disclosed.
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MArKEt FOr tHE COMPANY’S COMMON EQUItY, rELAtED SHArEHOLDEr  
MAttErS AND ISSUEr PUrCHASES OF EQUItY SECUrItIES

The Company’s common stock is listed on the NASDAQ Bulletin Board of the NASDAQ Stock Market LLC and is quoted 
under the symbol of “WFBI”. Set forth below is certain financial information relating to the Company’s common stock price 
history. Prices reflect transactions executed on NASDAQ.

As of March 1, 2010, the Company had 2,608,578 outstanding shares of Common Stock, par value $5.00 per share, held by  
approximately 417 shareholders of record and the closing price for the Company’s common stock on the NASDAQ Bulletin 
Board was $9.50.

The Company has not paid a dividend in its history to common shareholders.  Payment of dividends is at the discretion of  
the Company’s Board of Directors, and is subject to various federal and state, regulatory limitations. Future dividends would 
be dependent upon the overall performance and capital requirements of the Company. See “Business — Supervision and  
Regulation — Dividends” for a discussion of regulatory requirements related to dividends. 

The Company has not repurchased its common stock at any time during its history. No Share Repurchase Program has been 
adopted by the Board of Directors.

Stock Performance
The following graph compares the Company’s cumulative total shareholder return on its common stock for the five year  
period ended December 31, 2009 with the cumulative return of the “SNL Company Pink $100-500M Index” (the “Index”). 
This Index includes all Companys in SNL’s coverage universe traded on Pink Sheets and OTC BB markets with assets between 
$100 million and $500 million. This presentation assumes $100 was invested in shares of the Company and each of the indices 
on March 31, 2004, and that dividends, if any, were immediately reinvested in additional shares. The graph plots the value of 
the initial $100 investment at year-end intervals from March 31, 2004 through December 31, 2009. During the period March 3, 
2004 through December 31, 2006, there were only 5 trades of Company stock. It was not until the first quarter of 2007 that the 
Company’s stock traded in any significant volume.

 Period Ending December 31,
 Index 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
 WFBI 107.50 105.00 105.00 145.00 95.50 95.00
 SNL Index 112.86 124.54 134.60 118.60 82.94 47.66

There can be no assurance the Company’s future stock performance will continue with the same or similar trend as illustrated 
in the graph above.
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MANAgEMENt’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDItION 
AND rESULtS OF OPErAtION

The following discussion and analysis is intended to provide an overview of the significant factors affecting the financial  
condition and the results of operations of the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008. The financial statements 
and accompanying notes should be read in conjunction with this discussion and analysis.

Forward-Looking Statements
In addition to historical information, this Annual Report may contain forward-looking statements. For this purpose, any statements  
contained herein, including documents incorporated by reference, that are not statements of historical fact may be deemed to be 
forward-looking statements. Examples of forward-looking statements include discussions as to our expectations, beliefs, plans, 
goals, objectives and future financial or other performance or assumptions concerning matters discussed in this document.  
Forward-looking statements often use words such as “believes,” “expects,” “plans,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “projects,”  
“contemplates,” “anticipates,” “forecasts,” “intends” or other words of similar meaning. You can also identify them by the fact 
that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts. Forward-looking statements are subject to numerous assumptions, risks  
and uncertainties, and actual results could differ materially from historical results or those anticipated by such statements. Factors 
that could have a material adverse effect on the operations and future prospects of the Company include, but are not limited to, chang-
es in: branch expansion plans, interest rates, general economic conditions, monetary and fiscal policies of the U.S. Government,  
including policies of the Comptroller, U.S. Treasury and the FRB, the economy of the greater Washington, DC Metropolitan area,  
including governmental spending and real estate markets, the quality or composition of the loan or investment portfolios, demand 
for loan products, deposit flows, competition, and accounting principles, policies and guidelines. These risks and uncertainties 
should be considered in evaluating the forward-looking statements contained herein, and readers are cautioned not to place undue 
reliance on such statements. Any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which it is made, and we undertake no  
obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date on which it is made. For  
additional discussion of risk factors that may cause our actual future results to differ materially from the results indicated within  
forward looking statements, please see “RISK FACTORS” herein.

Financial Condition

Summary
The Company completed its sixth year of operation and recorded net income for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009 of 
$543,233.  Earnings in 2009 were impacted by improving net interest margins and growth in earning assets, as well as higher pro-
vision expense and higher FDIC insurance costs, including a one time special assessment of $148,197 in June 2009. Subsequently 
a prepaid assessment was imposed on December 30, 2009 by the FDIC covering a three year period in the amount of  $1,572,051 
of which $99,121 was expensed in 2009. The following discussions by major categories explain the changes in financial condition.

Investment Securities
The Bank’s investment portfolio is comprised of U.S. Government Agency securities, mortgage-backed securities, collateral-
ized mortgage obligations, municipal securities, and asset-backed securities. This portfolio is used to provide liquidity and as 
a tool for managing interest sensitivity in the balance sheet, while generating a reasonable return. At December 31, 2009, the 
estimated fair value of the securities portfolio totaled $22.5 million, down from $29.8 million, in 2008. The decrease is due to 
maturities in the investment portfolio that were not reinvested. All securities were classified as available for sale. The Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) requires that securities classified as available for sale be accounted for at fair market 
value. Unrealized gains and losses are recorded directly to a separate component of shareholders’ equity. The Bank’s securities 
classified as available for sale had an unrealized loss of $2.6 million on December 31, 2009. The following tables present the 
types, amounts and maturity distribution of the securities portfolio.

Investment Securities Available for Sale

Amounts in ‘000s 2009 2008 2007
US Government Agency  $      16,332 $               - $     13,303
Mortgage Backed Securities 3,109 19,881 16,136
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations - 9,444 1,999
Municipal Securities 3,002 - -
Asset Backed Securities 33 450 2,305
   Total Investments $      22,476 $    29,775 $    33,743
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Maturity Schedule of Investment Securities Available for Sale at December 31, 2009

 Within 1 Year 1 to 5 Years 5 to 10 Years After 10 Years Total
Amounts in ‘000s Amount Yield Amount  Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield
US Government Agency $       - - $  16,332 1.82% $         - - $         - - $ 16,332 1.82%
Mortgage Backed Securities     - - - - - - 3,109 2.54% 3,109 2.54%
Municipal Securities - - - - 2,157 4.39% 845 5.37% 3,002 4.66%
Asset Backed Securities - - - - - - 33 1.40% 33 1.40%
  Total Investments $       - - $    16,332 1.82% $    2,157 4.39% $  3,987 2.46% $ 22,476 2.21%

The Bank’s asset backed securities consist of an investment in Trapeza XIII, C-1 credit tranche. In 2009, this investment was 
determined to be other-than-temporarily impaired, resulting in a write down and corresponding impairment charge of $339,302. 

Loans
Loans held for investment totaled $272.0 million at December 31, 2009 up from $227.5 million at December 31, 2008, an 
increase of $44.5 million. The Bank concentrates on providing credit services to small to medium sized businesses and profes-
sionals in our market area. Our loan officers maintain a professional relationship with our clients and are responsive to their 
financial needs. They are directly involved in the community and it is this involvement and commitment that leads to referrals 
and continued growth.

Commercial loans increased by approximately $1.5 million from last year. Loans secured by commercial real estate decreased 
$5.4 million. Real estate construction loans increased $21.5 million, a 55.2% increase over last year. This loan category is 
comprised of construction and land development loans. Competition for loans in this somewhat cyclical category is very high. 
Residential real estate loans increased $26.1 million in 2009, a 55.4% increase compared to 2008. Consumer loans increased 
$0.7 million in 2009, a 67.1% increase versus 2008. The Company offers a complete line of consumer lending products, pri-
marily as a service to the affiliates of our commercial and professional clients. The Bank does not actively market its consumer 
products at this time, which accounts for the nominal amount of consumer loans.

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Bank had no loans held for sale. Mortgage loan origination volume for the year decreased 
from $6.0 million in 2008 to zero as the Bank suspended its mortgage origination unit in 2008. This decrease in loan origina-
tions is a result of the downturn in the housing industry.

The following tables present the major classifications and maturity distribution of loans held for investment at December 31:

Composition of Loan Portfolio

 2009 2008 2007 
Amounts in ‘000s Amount % of Total Amount % of Total Amount % of Total
Commercial & Industrial $    61,885 22.7% $   60,398 26.6% $    54,892 28.7%
Construction & Development 47,964 17.6% 26,488 11.6% 31,214 16.3%
Commercial Real Estate 101,687 37.4% 107,037 47.0% 76,894 40.2%
Residential Real Estate 58,678 21.6% 32,536 14.3% 25,690 13.4%
Consumer 1,775 0.7% 1,062 0.5% 2,766 1.4%
  Total Loans $  271,989 100.0% $ 227,521 100.0% $  191,456 100.0%

Maturity Schedule of Loans at December 31, 2009

 Within 1 Year 1 to 5 Years 5 to 10 Years After 10 Years Total
Amounts in ‘000s Amount Yield Amount  Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield
Commercial & Industrial $    35,306 5.7% $  24,646 7.2% $   1,933 7.8% $         -  - $ 61,885 6.4%
Construction & Development 23, 602 5.3% 20,606 6.2% 3,756 7.0% - - 47,964 5.8%
Commercial Real Estate 21,465 5.7% 72,157 7.0% 8,065 6.3% - - 101,687 6.8%
Residential Real Estate 26,996 5.0% 13,427 5.9% 18,255 5.5% - - 58,678 5.5%
Consumer  580 7.9% 1,164 7.4% 31 17.8% - - 1,775 7.8%
  Total Loans $ 107,949 5.4% $132,000 6.8% $ 32,040 6.0% $         - - $271,989 6.3%
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The Bank has an excellent track record on lending and loan underwriting. Since inception, regulatory examinations, loan  
reviews, and internal audits have all yielded outstanding marks for credit underwriting. Those problems evident in the portfolio  
stem predominately from loans underwritten by other institutions, which the Bank has either purchased or participated with one or  
more  financial institutions. Purchased loans and loan participations typically provide a Bank with the opportunity to lever-
age shareholders’ equity and generate earning assets faster than it would otherwise be able to generate loans on its own. As of  
December 31, 2009, the Bank had $34.1 million in outstanding loan participations and purchased loan balances, up from $32.9 
million at December 31, 2008. Of those loans outstanding at December 31, 2009, 5 loans ($2.9 million) were on non-accrual. 
Although management feels the remainder of these loans are stable, it has refocused its efforts to generate loans internally. 
Management does not expect to acquire additional purchased loans or loan participations going forward.

Allowance for Loan Losses
The allowance for loan loss totaled approximately $2.9 million at December 31, 2009. The level of the allowance for loan losses 
is determined by an on-going detailed analysis of risk and loss potential within the portfolio as a whole. Management concluded 
the amount of our reserve and the methodology applied to arrive at the amount of the reserve is justified and appropriate. Out-
side of our own analysis, our reserve adequacy and methodology are reviewed on a regular basis by an internal and external 
audit program and such reviews have not resulted in any material adjustment to the reserve.

The overall allowance for loan losses is equivalent to approximately 1.05% of total loans. The schedule below, allocation of 
the Allowance for Loan Losses, reflects the pro-rata allocation by the different loan types. The methodology as to how the  
allowance was derived is detailed below. Unallocated amounts included in the allowance for loan losses have been applied to 
the loan classifications on a percentage basis. There can be no assurance that additional provisions for loan losses will not be 
required in the future, including as a result of changes in the economic assumptions underlying management’s estimates and 
judgments, adverse developments in the economy on a national basis or in the Bank’s market area, or changes in the circum-
stances of particular borrowers.

Adequacy of the reserve is assessed, and appropriate expense and charge-offs are taken, no less frequently than at the close 
of each fiscal quarter, with the objective of quantifying portfolio risk into a dollar figure of inherent losses, thereby translat-
ing the subjective risk value into an objective number. The methodology by which we systematically determine the amount of 
our reserve is set forth by the Board of Directors in our Credit Policy. Under this Policy, our Chief Lending Officer is charged 
with ensuring that each loan is individually risk rated. Loans rated 1-5 are of acceptable risk. Loans risk rated 6 or higher are 
considered to be watch credits. Our Chief Financial Officer then evaluates loan portfolio characteristics and individual watch 
credits to arrive at an appropriate aggregate reserve. The results of the analysis are documented, reviewed and approved by the 
Board of Directors at least quarterly. Management feels that the allowance for loan losses is adequate at December 31, 2009.

Determination of the allowance for loan losses is based on applying and adding the results of ten qualitative factors to  
each category of loans identified along with any specific allowance for impaired and adversely classified loans with the particular  
category.  The resulting sum of factors is applied to the outstanding loan balances of that category to determine an allowance value for  
that category.  These category allowances are then summed to determine the Bank’s required allowance.  Qualitative factors 
include levels and trends in delinquencies and non-accruals, trends in volume and terms of loans, effects of any changes in lend-
ing policies, experience, ability, and depth of management, national and local economic trends and conditions, commitments 
and concentrations of credit, changes in quality of Bank’s loan review system, effects of external factors, and volume of loans  
identified with incomplete financial documentation.

When deterioration develops in an individual credit, the loan is placed on the “Watch List” and the loan is monitored more 
closely. All loans on the Watch List are evaluated for specific loss potential based upon either an evaluation of the liquidated 
value of the collateral or cash flow deficiencies. If management believes that, with respect to a specific loan, an impaired source 
of repayment, collateral impairment or a change in a debtor’s financial condition presents a heightened risk of non-performance 
of a particular loan, a portion of the reserve may be specifically allocated to that individual loan. The aggregation of this loan 
by loan loss analysis comprises the “Specific Reserve”.  From time to time, an unallocated reserve may be maintained to absorb 
risk factors outside of the General and Specific Allocations. No specific limits are established by management on a quarterly 
basis for the Unallocated Reserve.

In addition to the reserves discussed above, management maintains a separate reserve in other liabilities for potential early 
default and fraud, if any, stemming from our mortgage brokerage activities. At both December 31, 2009 and 2008, the balance 
for this reserve was $0.
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The following tables present an analysis of the allowance for loan losses, for the years ended December 31.

Allowance for Loan Losses

Amounts in ‘000s 2009 2008 2007
Beginning Balance $      2,145 $      2,114 $       1,476
Provision 1,515 605 659
Charge-offs:   
   Commercial 344 - -
   Real Estate 895 557 -
   Consumer 10 18 21
      Total Charge-offs 1,249 575 21
Recoveries:   
   Commercial 95 - -
   Real Estate 350 - -
   Consumer - 1 -
      Total Recoveries 445 1 -
   
Net Charge-offs 804 574 21
   Ending Balance $       2,856 $      2,145 $       2,114

Allocation of Allowance for Loan Losses and percentage of total allowance is as follows for December 31, 2009.

 2009 2008 2007 
Amounts in ‘000s Amount % of Total Amount % of Total Amount % of Total
Commercial & Industrial $      771 27.0% $      468 21.8% $     405 19.1%
Construction & Development 361 12.6% 208 9.7% 317 15.0%
Commercial Real Estate 923 32.3% 722 33.7% 615 29.1%
Residential Real Estate 527 18.5% 440 20.5% 431 20.3%
Consumer 9 0.3% 11 0.5% 24 1.1%
Notes with Available Credit 265 9.3% 287 13.4% 318 15.0%
Unallocated Reserve - - 9 0.4% 4 0.4%
  Total Allowance for Loan Losses $   2,856 100.0% $   2,145 100.0% $  2,114 100.0%

The following table presents information with respect to non-performing assets and 90 day delinquencies for the years ended  
December 31.

Amounts in ‘000s   2009 2008 2007
Non-Accrual Loans:   
   Commercial   $           154 $               - $              -
   Construction   819 - -
   Real Estate   2,121 2,407 702
   Consumer   - 126 -
      Total Non-Accrual Loans   3,094 2,533 702

Restructured Loans   439 382 -
Loans 90-days past due and accruing   - - -
Other Real Estate Owned   900 945 -
Total Non-Performing Assets (NPA)   $        4,433 $       3,860 $         702
   
Ratio of NPA / Loans & OREO   1.44% 1.69% 0.84%
Ratio of NPA / Total Assets   1.11% 1.29% 0.63%

24 | WashingtonFirst Bankshares



When a loan is placed on non-accrual, unpaid interest is reversed against interest income. Subsequent receipts on non-accrual 
loans are recorded as a reduction of principal and interest income is recorded only after principal recovery is reasonably  
assured. The loss potential for each loan has been evaluated and in management’s opinion the risk of loss is adequately  
reserved. Management actively works with the borrowers to maximize the potential for repayment and reports on the status to 
the Board of Directors, no less than on a monthly basis.

Deposits
Deposits totaled $276.6 million at December 31, 2009 and were comprised of non-interest bearing demand deposits in the 
amount of $39.4 million, savings and interest bearing deposits in the amount of $59.2 million, and time deposits in the 
amount of $178.0 million. Total deposits increased $46.3 million in 2009, an increase of 20.1%. Non-interest bearing demand  
deposits are predominately commercial accounts and are subject to wide fluctuation. These accounts increased $17.6 million from  
December 31, 2008. Average deposits for 2009 totaled $252.2 million compared to $209.3 in 2008, an increase of $42.9 mil-
lion. We offer a full line of competitive deposit products that have varying rates and terms. Our deposits are primarily from our 
local market. Professional loan officers are responsible for marketing both loans and deposits. Our primary focus with respect 
to core deposit growth is upon the business deposits in our market. We plan to strengthen our sales staff by adding personnel, 
and we continue to use direct marketing and traditional media advertising.

Time deposits represent 64.4% of total deposits at December 31, 2009, down from 69.8% of total deposits, as a percentage of  
deposits on December 31, 2008. Time deposits as a percentage of deposits decreased by 5.4% in 2009 due to management’s effort 
to reduce reliance on wholesale and brokered deposits. Savings and interest bearing deposits represent 21.4% of total deposits as 
compared to 20.8% on December 31, 2008. Non-interest bearing demand deposits represent 14.3% of total deposits, up from 12.8% 
in 2008. This increase is due mainly to management’s efforts to increase noninterest bearing transaction accounts. Brokered and 
wholesale deposits included in time deposits totaled $35.8 million at December 31, 2009 and represented 12.9% of total deposits,  
compared to $44.0 million and 19.1% of total deposits at December 31, 2008. Wholesale deposits are funds from other financial 
institutions placed with the Bank solely as an investment. Together with other funding sources, we use these types of deposits 
for specific funding requirements.

The daily average balances and weighted average rates paid on deposits for each of the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 
and 2007 are presented below.

Average Deposits and Average Rates Paid

 2009 2008 2007 
Amounts in ‘000s Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
Transaction Accounts $   43,797 0.19% $   49,196 0.76% $   48,429 1.87%
Savings 7,370 0.82% 5,072 0.26% 6,461 1.19% 
Time 164,303 3.11% 131,977 4.20% 100,223 5.07% 
   Interest Bearing Accounts 215,470 2.44% 186,245 3.19% 155,113 3.91%
Non-Interest Demand 36,770  23,045  21,805  
   Total Deposits $ 252,240 2.08% $ 209,290 2.84% $ 176,918 3.43% 

Certificate of Deposit Maturity Distribution as of December 31, 2009

Amount in ‘000s
 Less Than  Three Mo. to One to 

 Three Mo. One Year Five Years 
Total

Time Deposits <$100,000 $      18,607 $      40,063 $      11,335 $      70,005
Time Deposits >$100,000 22,225 66,713 19,081 108,019
  Total Time Deposits $      40,832 $    106,776 $      30,416 $    178,024
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Borrowings
Borrowed funds consist of advances from the FHLB and securities sold under agreements to repurchase. Borrowings decreased 
$6.2 million in 2009 due primarily to discontinuing Customer  Repurchase Agreements in 2009. The following table provides 
a breakdown of all borrowed funds:

Amounts in ‘000s   2009 2008 2007
For the year ended December 31,
FHLB Advances   $       33,850 $     25,350 $        8,567
Repurchase Agreements   - 14,704 15,233
  Total Borrowings   33,850 40,054 23,800

Average balances for the year   
FHLB Advances   30,713 16,466 6,628
Repurchase Agreements   6,304 16,810 16,963
  Total Borrowings   $       37,017 $     33,276 $      23,591
   
Average Rate on Borrowings   2.68% 2.37% 4.02%

Shareholders’ Equity
Shareholders’ equity increased $16.0 million during 2009. In January 2009, the Company received $6.633 million in Series 
A preferred stock with a 5% dividend for the first five years and 9% thereafter from the U.S. Treasury under the TARP / CPP 
program. With this, the Company issued $333,000 in Series B preferred shares with a dividend of 9% with no additional capital 
investment. In October 2009, under the TARP / CPP Expansion Program the Company received an additional $6.842 million in 
Series C preferred stock with a dividend of 5% from the US Treasury under the same terms as Series A preferred. In November 
2009 the Company sold 196,440 shares of common stock at $12.00 per share, netting approximately $2.2 million in new capital 
after offering expenses.

Banking regulators have defined minimum regulatory capital ratios that the Company and the Bark are required to maintain. 
These risk based capital guidelines take into consideration risk factors, as defined by the banking regulators, associated with 
various categories of assets, both on and off the balance sheet. Both the Company and Bank are classified as “well capitalized”, 
which is the highest regulatory rating. The table below presents an analysis of risk based capital, and outlines the regulatory 
components of capital and risk based capital ratios.

Risk Based Capital Analysis for years ended December 31,

Amounts in ‘000s   2009 2008 2007
Tier-1 Capital   
  Preferred Stock   $       13,535 $                 - $                  -
  Common Stock   13,043 12,061 11,481
  Surplus   17,621 16,021 14,896
  Retained Earnings (Deficit)   (       17) (     103) (     300)
  Less: Goodwill   (  3,601) (  3,471) (  3,471)
  Less: Disallowed Deferred Taxes   (  2,375) (  2,426) (  1,891)
  Tier-1 Capital   38,206 22,082 20,715
   
Allowance for Loan Loss   2,857 2,143 2,114
  Tier -2 Capital   2,857 2,143 2,114
  total risk-Based Capital   $        41,063 $        24,225 $       22,829

Risk-weighted Assets   $      282,011 $     233,710 $     206,377
Adjusted Quarterly Average Assets *   337,366 259,639 241,445
   
Capital ratios:   
Tier-1 Risk Based Capital   13.6% 9.4% 10.1%
Total Risk Based Capital   14.6% 10.3% 11.1%
Tier-1 Leverage   11.3% 8.5% 8.6%
 
* Adjusted quarterly average assets as defined by the FDIC for purposed of calculating the Tier-1 leverage ratio.
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results of Operations
Given the state of the economy, property values on residential and commercial property in the Bank’s market area, defined 
as the greater Washington, DC metropolitan area, remains flat.  With high unemployment, slow residential property sales and 
rising commercial vacancy rates, the commercial banking industry has experienced an increase in past due loans and defaults.  
The Bank continues to focus on high quality loans resulting in non-performing loans of 1.11% of total loans of $271,723,681 
outstanding as of December 31, 2009, compared to 1.29% in 2008.  While we have never been a sub-prime lender, we have 
a small portfolio of sub-prime mortgage loans that was acquired in 2007.  As of December 31, 2009, the outstanding balance 
of the sub-prime loans was $1.8 million. Losses in this portfolio increased to $847,627 in 2009 compared to $44,197 in 2008. 
We foreclosed on two properties during 2009 and in turn sold them realizing a profit of $37,381.  In 2009, the Federal Reserve 
continued to maintain interest rates at record lows in an attempt to further stimulate the economy.

Net income totaled $543,233 for the year ended December 31, 2009, an increase of $346,548 from $196,685 in 2008. Return on 
average assets was 0.17%, an increase from 0.07% for the year ended December 31, 2009. Return on average equity increased 
to 1.57% from 0.76% in 2009. Diluted earnings per share to common shareholders for 2009 was $0.04 compared to $0.08 in 
2008.

Net Interest Income
Net interest income, the principal source of Company earnings, is the amount of income generated by earning assets (primarily 
loans and investment securities) less the interest expense incurred on interest bearing liabilities (primarily deposits) used to 
fund earning assets. During 2009 our net interest margin increased 4 basis points from 3.63% in 2008 to 3.67%. The weighted 
average yield on earning assets decreased 53 basis points, while the weighted average rate paid on interest bearing liabilities  
decreased 58 basis points contributing to the increase in net interest margin and reflecting the competition for deposits.  
The table below, Yield on Average Earning Assets and Rates on Average Interest Bearing Liabilities summarizes the major 
components of net interest income for the past three years and also provides yields, rates and average balances.

Net interest income on a fully taxable equivalent basis increased from $9.3 million in 2008 to $11.2 million in 2009. Net  
interest income depends upon the volume of earning assets and interest bearing liabilities and the associated rates. Average 
interest earning assets increased $60.3 million to $316.7 million, up from $256.4 million in 2008. See Volume and Rate analy-
sis for changes in earning assets and interest bearing liabilities. Interest expense totaled $6.3 million in 2009, a decrease of  
$0.4 million over 2008. Interest bearing deposits and borrowings averaged $253.5 million in 2009 compared to $219.5 million 
in 2008. The increase in deposits and borrowings funded the growth in earning assets.
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Yield on Average Earning Assets and Rates on Average Interest Bearing Liabilities for years ended December 31,

 2009 2008 2007 
Amounts in ‘000s Avg Bal Interest % Avg Bal Interest % Avg Bal Interest % 
Federal Funds Sold $   13,371 $      32 0.24% $ 15,932 $     340 2.07% $   12,835 $     639 4.98%
Interest-bearing Balances 19,415 472 2.43% 2,892 98 3.40% - - -%
Investment Securities 32,730 1,262 3.85% 31,469 1,634 5.19% 39,783 2,009 5.05%
Loans (3) 251,190 15,755 6.27% 206,078 13,965 6.78% 163,135 13,812 8.47%
  Earnings Assets 316,706 17,521 5.53% 256,371 16,037 6.25% 215,753 16,460 7.63%
Less: Allowance for Loan Losses (2,536)   ( 2,030)   (1,668)  
Cash & Due From Balances 922   5,415   4,255 
Fixed Assets 2,101   2,513   2,672
Other Assets 9,078   7,982   6,986
  Total Assets 326,271   270,251   227,998 

Interest-Bearing Transaction Accounts 51,168 145 0.29% 54,268 385 0.71% 54,891 983 3.56%
Time Deposits 164,302 5,104 3.11% 131,977 5,549 4.20% 100,222 5,084 5.07%
Borrowings 37,985 1,016 2.68% 33,276 773 2.32% 23,591 947 4.02%
  Interest Bearing Liabilities 253,455 6,265 2.48% 219,521 6,707 3.06% 178,704 7,014 3.93%
Non-Interest Transaction Accounts 36,770   23,045   21,805   
Other Liabilities 1,481   1,835   2,425   
Equity 34,565   25,850   25,064 
  Total Liabilities & Equity $326,271   $270,251   $227,998

Net Interest Income and Spread (1)  $ 11,228 3.24%  $  9,319 3.19%  $  9,446 3.70%
Free Funds Contribution   0.43%   0.44%   0.68%
Net Interest Margin (2)(4)   3.67%   3.63%   4.38%

(1) Interest spread is the average yield earned on earning assets, less the average rate incurred on interest bearing liabilities. 
(2) Net interest margin is net interest income, expressed as a percentage of average earning assets.
(3) Loans placed on non-accrual status are included in loan balances
(4) Note: Interest income and yields are presented on a fully taxable equivalent basis using 38.5% tax rate.

Rate – Volume Analysis*

The following tables describe the impact on the Bank’s interest income resulting from changes in average balances and aver-
age rates for the periods indicated. The changes in interest due to both volume and rate has been allocated to volume and rate 
changes in proportion to the relationship of the absolute dollar amounts of the change in each.

 2009-2008 2008-2007

Amounts in ‘000s
 Increase 

Rate Volume 
Increase 

Rate Volume
 (Decrease)   (Decrease)
Interest Income:   
Federal Funds Sold  $   (314)  $   (290)   $    (24)  $   (310)   $    (374)  $       64
Interest Bearing Balances 374  (28)   402    98       - 98
Investment Securities (402) (451)     49 (375)  56 (431)
Loans 1,789 (1,040)  2,829 153  (2,757)  2,910
  Interest Income 1,447  (1,809) 3,256 (434) (3,075) 2,641

Interest Expense:   
Interest Bearing Transaction Accounts   (240) (231)  (9) (598)  (594) (4)
Time Deposits (446)  (1,450)   1,004 465  (870)  1,335
Borrowings   243 (238) 481  (174)  (541) 367
  Interest Expense  (443)  (1,919) 1,476 (307)  (2,005) 1,698
   
Net Interest Income  $   1,890  $      110  $  1,780  $   (127)   $ (1,070)  $     943

• Note: Interest income and yields are presented on a fully taxable equivalent basis using 38.5% tax rate.
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Provision for Loan Losses
The provision for loan losses charged to operating expense in 2009 was $1,515,000 up from $605,000 in 2008 due to  
increased change-offs and increased loan volumes. Management believes the allowance for loan losses is adequate to absorb 
inherent losses in the loan portfolio based on the evaluation as of  December 31, 2009.

Non-Interest Income
Non-interest income consists of revenue generated from a range of financial services and activities. Total non-interest income was 
$1,224,395 in 2009 compared to $831,915 in 2008. The increase in non-interest income was due primarily to the increase in the 
gain on sale of securities of $850,676 in 2009 compared to $22,003 in 2008.  Deposit fee income in 2009 was $452,052  versus 
$507,171 for 2008. No fees on brokered loans were earned in 2009 compared to a total of $42,445 in 2008. In 2008, the Company 
also recorded a one-time gain on its holdings in Access Capital Strategies LLC (ACS), an asset management company totaling  
approximately $150,000, resulting from the sale of its holdings in ACS in 2008.

Non-Interest Expense
Total non-interest expense increased $675,090, to $9,895,178 in 2009 compared to $9,220,088 in 2008.  This increase  is 
attributable primarily to (i) an increase in FDIC insurance premiums of $398,563 in 2009 compared to 2008, and (ii) non-recurring  
increase in professional fees of $246,469 related to merger and acquisitions projects in 2009.  

Income taxes
Income tax expense totaled approximately $519,270 compared to a $129,000 income tax benefit in 2008 and a $363,666 benefit 
in 2007. Note 12 to the financial statements show the components of federal income tax. The 2007 tax benefit arose from the 
removal of a valuation allowance against the deferred tax asset.

Quarterly results
The following is a summary of the results of operations for each quarter of 2009 and 2008.

Amounts in ‘000s  1Q2009 2Q2009 3Q2009 4Q2009 2009
Interest Income  $   4,042  $    4,305  $    4,549  $    4,617 $   17,513
Interest Expense  1,647              1,534        1,605   1,479  6,265
  Net Interest Income  2,395 2,771  2,944   3,138 11,248
Provision for Loan Loss                                                      423                496          244      352  1,515
Non-Interest Income                                                           597                189 180     258      1,224
Non-Interest Expense                                                      2,566   2,460 2,574 2,295   9,895
  Net Income, before tax              3                           4 306      749      1,062
Tax Expense  1 1 147 370 519
  Net Income     2                    3   159      379      543
Preferred Dividends & Accretion  71  108 109 169 457
  Net Income (Loss) - Common  $     (69) $     (105) $           50 $       210 $          86
     
Earnings per common share:     
  Basic  $   (0.03) $   (0.04) $       0.02 $      0.08 $       0.04
  Fully Diluted                                                            $   (0.03)  $   (0.04) $       0.02 $      0.08 $       0.04
 
Amounts in ‘000s  1Q2008 2Q2008 3Q2008 4Q2008 2008
Interest Income  $   4,100 $    3,927 $    4,041 $    3,958 $   16,026
Interest Expense  1,784 1,662 1,610 1,651 6,707
  Net Interest Income  2,316 2,265 2,431 2,307 9,319
Provision for Loan Losses  55 100 138 312 605
Non-Interest Income  169 274 148 241 832
Non-Interest Expense  2,296 2,301 2,390 2,233 9,220
  Net Income before tax  134 138 51     3 326
Tax Expense (Benefit)  53 55 20     1 129
  Net Income  $        81       $         83      $         31       $           2      $        197

Earnings per common share:
  Basic  $     0.03 $      0.03 $      0.02 $      0.00 $       0.08
  Fully Diluted  $     0.03 $      0.03 $      0.02 $      0.00 $       0.08
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Liquidity Management
Liquidity is the ability of the Company to convert assets into cash or cash equivalents without significant loss and to raise  
additional funds by increasing liabilities. Liquidity management involves maintaining the Company’s ability to meet the daily cash  
flow requirements of both depositors and borrowers.

Asset and liability management functions not only serve to assure adequate liquidity in order to meet the needs of the  
Company’s customers, but also to maintain an appropriate balance between interest sensitive assets and interest sensitive  
liabilities so that the Company can earn an appropriate return for its shareholders.

The asset portion of the balance sheet provides liquidity primarily through loan principal repayments and maturities of invest-
ment securities. Other short-term investments such as Federal Funds sold and maturing interest bearing deposits with other 
banks are additional sources of liquidity funding. At December 31, 2009, Federal Funds sold totaled $24.6 million, overnight 
interest bearing balances totaled $23.0 million and securities available for sale, net of restricted stock totaled $22.5 million.

The liability portion of the balance sheet provides liquidity through various interest bearing and non-interest bearing deposit  
accounts, Federal Funds purchased, securities sold under agreements to repurchase and other borrowings. The Company has 
$147.7 million in time deposits maturing in the 12 months after December 31, 2009. Given the Company’s competitive rates 
and customer relationships, the Company has the ability to retain these deposits. At December 31, 2009, the Bank had a line 
of credit with the FHLB totaling $71.0 million, of which $33.9 million were in the form of term loans at fixed rates ranging 
from 0.89% to 4.35% leaving $37.1 million available on the line. The Bank also maintains Federal Funds lines of credit with 
its correspondent banks and, at December 31, 2009, these lines amounted to $17.7 million. There were no amounts outstanding 
on these lines at December 31, 2009.

The Company funded the growth in interest earning assets through a combination of deposits, retention of earnings, issuance of  
stock, and borrowed funds. The Company expects its short and long term sources of liquidity and capital to remain adequate to  
support expected growth. The Company relies on a variety of short and long term resources for liquidity from a variety of sources that 
substantially reduces reliance upon any single provider.

Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes the Company’s non-deposit contractual obligations to make future payments as of  
December 31, 2009.

Amount in ‘000s
 Less Than  Three Mo. to One to More than 

 Three Mo. One Year Five Years 5 Years 
Total

FHLB Advances $        250              $          750              $      32,850 $              - $     33,850
Leases 268 804 4,196 2,695 7,963
  Total $        518 $       1,554 $      37,046 $      2,695 $     41,813
     
Off Balance Sheet Items
During the ordinary course of business, the Company issues commitments to extend credit and, at December 31, 2009, these 
commitments amounted to $40.6 million. These commitments do not necessarily represent cash requirements, since many com-
mitments are expected to expire without being drawn on. These commitments, if drawn upon, would be funded from routine 
cash flows.

QUANtItAtIvE AND QUALItAtIvE DISCLOSUrES ABOUt MArKEt rISK 

The Company’s market risk is composed primarily of interest rate risk. The Asset-Liability Committee (“ALCO”) is respon-
sible for reviewing the interest rate sensitivity position and establishes policies to monitor and coordinate the Company’s 
sources, uses and pricing of funds.

Interest rate Sensitivity Management
The Company uses a simulation model to analyze, manage and formulate operating strategies that address net interest income 
sensitivity to movements in interest rates. The simulation model projects net interest income based on various interest rate 
scenarios over a twelve month period. The model is based on the actual maturity and re-pricing characteristics of rate sensi-
tive assets and liabilities. The model incorporates certain assumptions which management believes to be reasonable regarding 
the impact of changing interest rates and the prepayment assumption of certain assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2009.  
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The model assumes changes in interest rates without any management intervention to change the composition of the balance 
sheet. The table below reflects the outcome of these analyses at December 31, 2009. As interest rates remained at historic lows 
at December 31, 2009, further rate decreases were considered not meaningful for purposes of this analysis. While management 
carefully monitors the exposure to changes in interest rates and takes actions as warranted to decrease any adverse impact, there 
can be no assurance about the actual effect of interest rate changes on net interest income.

Rate Shock Analysis

   Hypothetical Percentage
 Change in Target  Hypothetical Percentage Change in Economic
 Fed Funds Rate Change in Earnings Value of Equity 
 2.00% -3% (2%)
 1.00% -2% (1%)
 -1.00% 4% 0%
 -2.00% 5% 6%

The Company’s net interest income and the fair value of its financial instruments are influenced by changes in the level of inter-
est rates. The Company manages its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates through policies established by its ALCO. ALCO 
meets periodically and has responsibility for formulating and implementing strategies to improve balance sheet positioning and 
earnings and reviewing interest rate sensitivity.

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices
The Company’s asset and liability structure is substantially different from that of a non-financial company in that virtually 
all assets and liabilities of the Company are monetary in nature. The impact of inflation on financial results depends upon the 
Company’s ability to react to changes in interest rates and, by such reaction, reduce the inflationary impact on performance. 
Interest rates do not necessarily move in the same direction, or at the same magnitude, as the prices of other goods and services. 
Management seeks to manage the relationship between interest-sensitive assets and liabilities in order to protect against wide 
interest rate fluctuations, including those resulting from inflation.
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

Board of Directors and Shareholders 
WashingtonFirst Bankshares, Inc. 
Reston, Virginia 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of WashingtonFirst Bankshares, Inc. as 
of December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the related statements of income, shareholders’ equity, 
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2009. These 
financial statements are the responsibility of the Bank’s management. Our responsibility is 
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as 
a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control over 
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe 
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of WashingtonFirst Bankshares, Inc. at December 31, 2009 
and 2008, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in 
the period ended December 31, 2009 in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

March 16, 2010 

BDO Seidman, LLP
Accountants and Consultants 

300 Arboretum Place 
Suite 520 
Richmond, VA  23236 
Telephone (804) 330-3092 
Fax (804) 330-7753 



WASHINgtONFIrSt BANKSHArES INC.  AND SUBSIDIArY  

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,  2009 2008
  
ASSEtS  
  
Cash & Due From Bank Balances  $            846,943 $            860,576
Interest Bearing Balances  23,035,000 7,128,000
Federal Funds Sold  24,576,770 23,259,626
Investment Securities  22,475,901 29,775,412
Other Equity Securities  2,712,700 1,809,700
Loans, net of allowance  268,866,946 225,212,884
Premises & Equipment, net  1,913,419 2,304,413
Goodwill  3,601,179 3,601,179
Deferred Tax Asset  3,024,692 2,561,898
Accrued Interest Receivable  1,222,784 935,271
Other Real Estate Owned  900,000 945,446
Other Assets  2,083,611 921,331
   
  Total Assets  $     355,259,945 $     299,315,736
   
   
LIABILItIES AND SHArEHOLDErS’ EQUItY  
   
Non-Interest Bearing Deposits  $       39,354,585 $       21,793,735
Interest Bearing Deposits  237,255,244 208,490,077
  Total Deposits  276,609,829 230,283,812
   
Repurchase Agreements  - 14,704,491
FHLB Advances  33,850,000 25,350,000
Accrued Interest Payable  848,006 936,877
Other Liabilities  1,153,736 1,011,382
  Total Liabilities  312,461,571 272,286,562
   
Preferred Stock
Par value $5.00 per share; 1,000,000 shares authorized   
Series A – 6,633 shares issued and outstanding, 5% dividend  33,165 -
Series B – 332 shares issued and outstanding, 9% dividend  1,660 -
Series C – 6,842 shares issued and outstanding, 5% dividend  34,210 -
Additional Paid-in Capital - Preferred  13,467,015 -

Common Stock
Par value $5.00 per share; 10,000,000 shares authorized; 
2,608,578 and 2,412,138 shares outstanding respectively  13,042,890 12,060,690
Additional Paid-in Capital - Common  17,621,047 16,020,711
Accumulated Deficit  (17,447) (     103,255)
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)  (1,384,166) (     948,972)
  Total Shareholders’ Equity  42,798,374 27,029,174
  
  
  Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity  $     355,259,945 $     299,315,736

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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WASHINgtONFIrSt BANKSHArES INC. AND SUBSIDIArY 

Consolidated Statements of Income

For the years ended December, 31 2009 2008 2007
Interest Income   
Interest & Fees on Loans $  15,754,587 $  13,965,138 $  13,811,530
Interest & Dividends on Investments 1,758,721 2,061,193 2,648,102
  Total Interest Income 17,513,308 16,026,331 16,459,632
   
Interest Expense   
Interest on Deposits 5,248,738 5,934,254 6,066,840
Interest on Borrowings 1,016,198 773,219 947,409
  Total Interest Expense 6,264,936 6,707,473 7,014,249
   
Net Interest Income 11,248,372 9,318,858 9,445,383

Provision for Loan Losses 1,515,086 605,000 659,565
Net Interest Income after provision for loan losses 9,733,286 8,713,858 8,785,818
   
Non-Interest Income   
Service Charges on Deposit Accounts 452,052 507,171 359,384
Other Operating Income 260,969 302,741 112,636
Other than Temporary Impairment ( 339,302) - -
Gain on Sale of Securities 850,676 22,003 -
  Total Non-Interest Income 1,224,395 831,915 472,020
   
Non-Interest Expense   
Salaries and Employee Benefits 4,840,241 4,874,133 4,506,532
Occupancy and Equipment Expenses 2,084,623 2,139,545 2,066,837
Other Operating Expenses 2,970,314 2,206,410 1,868,516
  Total Non-Interest Expense 9,895,178 9,220,088 8,441,885
   
Income before provision (benefit) for income taxes 1,062,503 325,685 815,953

Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes 519,270 129,000 (  363,666)
   
Net Income 543,233 196,685 1,179,619
    
Preferred stock dividends and accretion (457,425) - -
Net Income available to common shareholders $         85,808 $       196,685 $   1,179,619

Basic Earnings per Common Share $   0.04 $  0.08 $  0.51
Fully Diluted Earnings per Common Share $   0.04 $  0.08 $  0.48

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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WASHINgtONFIrSt BANKSHArES INC. AND SUBSIDIArY 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2009 2008 2007

OPErAtINg ACtIvItIES
   
Net Income $    543,233     $     196,685 $  1,179,619
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities   
    Depreciation 422,314 540,169 534,262
    Loss (Gain) on Sale of Securities Available for Sale (    850,676) 281,111 -
    Unrealized Loss on Securities Available for Sale  339,302 - -
    Gain on Sale of Other Real Estate Owned (      37,381) - -
    Provision for Loan Losses 1,515,086 605,000 659,565
    Discount (Accretion) on Securities Available for Sale 348,957 (      126,928) (      351,618)
    Stock Based Compensation 353,941 86,255 142,290
    Changes in Assets and Liabilities   
        (Increase) Decrease in Interest Receivable (   287,513) 279,075 (      206,111)
        (Increase) Decrease in Other Assets (1,579,628) (      410,900) (      179,683)
        Increase (Decrease) in Interest Payable (     88,871) (      976,217) 1,345,051
        Increase (Decrease) in Other Liabilities    142,354       364,319 (      893,672)
Net Cash Provided by Operations 821,118 838,569 2,229,703
   
INvEStINg ACtIvItIES   
   
Purchase of Interest Bearing Investments (15,907,000) (   7,128,000) -
Purchase of Securities Available for Sale (53,028,808) ( 21,902,627) (   2,444,260)
Sale and Maturities of Securities Available for Sale 60,092,923 23,365,083 13,491,032
Net Increase in Loans (45,169,148) ( 36,860,672) ( 47,444,400)
Sale (Purchase) of FHLB stock (     903,000) (      867,400) (      387,300)
Purchases of Premises and Equipment, net (       31,320) (        68,620) (      664,573)
  Net Cash Absorbed by Investing Activities (54,946,353) ( 43,462,236) ( 37,385,020)
   
FINANCINg ACtIvItIES   
   
Net Increase in Deposits 46,326,017 27,667,139 52,694,991
Net Increase in FHLB Advances 8,500,000 16,783,334 8,566,667
Net Decrease in Repurchase Agreements (14,704,491) (      529,120) (16,247,988)
Proceeds from Issuance of Common Stock, net 2,228,595 1,617,880 4,300
Proceeds from Issuance of Preferred Stock, net 13,475,000 - -
Preferred Stock Dividends Paid (     396,375) - -
  Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 55,428,746 45,539,233 45,017,970
   
Net Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents 1,303,511 2,915,566 9,862,653
   
Cash & Cash Equivalents, beginning 24,120,202 21,204,636 11,341,983
   
Cash & Cash Equivalents, ending $ 25,423,713 $ 24,120,202 $ 21,204,636

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing activity:
Loan converted into Other Real Estate Owned $                  -    $         945,446 $                 -

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



NOtE 1 – SIgNIFICANt ACCOUNtINg POLICIES

Nature of Business.  On February 24, 2004, WashingtonFirst Bank (the “Bank”) was incorporated and charted in the District of 
Columbia. In 2007, the Bank converted its charter to the Commonwealth of Virginia.  In June 2009 WashingtonFirst Bankshares, 
Inc. was formed and subsequently acquired all the shares of the Bank.  The Bank provides its customers with various banking 
services which include various loan and deposit products. The Bank’s customers include individuals and commercial enterprises 
within its principal market area consisting of Washington DC and the surrounding region.  The Bank serves its customers from 
eight branches located in the Washington DC and suburban Virginia and Maryland.  The Bank maintains correspondent banking 
relationships and transacts daily federal funds sales on an unsecured basis with regional correspondent banks.

Basis of Presentation.  The accounting and reporting policies of the Bank conform to accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America and to predominant practices within the banking industry.  In 2009, the Financial Account-
ing Standards Board (FASB) reorganized Statements of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) into Accounting Standards  
Codification (ASC).

Use of Estimates.  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that 
are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses, 
the fair values and impairments of financial instruments, the status of contingencies and the valuation of deferred tax assets.  

Cash and Cash Equivalents.  For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash and due from 
banks and federal funds sold.  The Bank maintains deposits with other commercial banks in amounts that may exceed federal  
deposit insurance coverage. Management regularly evaluates the credit risk associated with these transactions and believes that 
the Bank is not exposed to any significant credit risks on cash and cash equivalents. The Bank is required to maintain certain 
average reserve balances with the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond.  Those balances include usable vault cash and amounts 
on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond. The Bank had no compensating balance requirements or required cash 
reserves with correspondent banks as of December 31, 2009.

Interest Bearing Balances.  The Bank maintains an investment portfolio at other banks to help ensure sufficient liquidity and 
provide additional return versus overnight Federal Funds.  These balances are time deposits in FDIC insured institutions.  All 
balances are fully insured by the FDIC.

Investment Securities.  The Bank maintains an investment securities portfolio to help ensure sufficient liquidity and provide 
additional return versus overnight Federal Funds and interest bearing balances. Securities that management has both the positive  
intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as “held to maturity” and are recorded at amortized cost. Securities not 
classified as held to maturity, including equity securities with readily determinable fair values, are classified as “available for 
sale” and recorded at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported in other comprehensive 
income. Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method over the terms of the 
securities. Declines in the fair value of held to maturity and available for sale securities below their cost that are deemed to 
be other than temporary are reflected in earnings as realized losses. Gains and losses on the sale of securities are recorded on 
the trade date and are determined using the specific identification method. All securities were classified as available for sale at 
December 31, 2009 and 2008.

The estimated fair value of the portfolio fluctuates due to changes in market interest rates and other factors. Changes in estimated 
fair value are recorded in shareholders equity as a component of comprehensive income. Securities are monitored to determine 
whether a decline in their value is other-than-temporary. Management evaluates the investment portfolio on a quarterly basis to  
determine the collectability of amounts due per the contractual terms of the investment security. Once a decline in value is  
determined to be other than temporary, the value of the security is reduced and a corresponding charge to earnings is recognized. 

Other-thanTemporary Impairments. The Company evaluates all securities in its investment portfolio for other-than-temporary 
impairments. A security is generally defined to be impaired if the carrying value of such security exceeds its estimated fair 
value. Based on the provisions of ASC320 (formerly FAS 1115-2 and 124-2), a security is considered to be other-than-tempo-
rarily impaired if the present value of cash flows expected to be collected is less than the security’s amortized cost basis (the 
difference being defined as the credit loss) or if the fair value of the security is less than the secuity’s amortized cost basis and 
the investor intends, or more-likely-than-not will be required to sell the security before recovery of the security’s amortized cost 
basis. The charge to earnings is limited to the amount of credit loss if the investor does not intend, and is more-likely-than-not 
that it will not require, to sell the security before recovery of the security’s amortized cost basis.  Any remaining difference 
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between fair value and amortized cost is recognized in other comprehensive income, net of applicable taxes.  Otherwise, the 
entire difference between fair value and amortized cost is charged to earnings.  In certain instances, as a result of the other-than-
temporary impairment analysis, the recognition or accrual of interest will be discontinued and the security will be placed on 
non-accrual status. Securities normally are not placed on non-accrual status if the servicer continues to advance on the impaired 
loans in the security.

Equity Securities.  Restricted stock, such as FHLB stock and Bankers’ Bank stock, is carried at cost.  As a member of the 
Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta (FHLB), the Bank is required to purchase and maintain stock in the FHLB in an amount 
equal to 4.5% of aggregate outstanding advances in addition to the membership stock requirement of 0.2% of the Bank’s total 
assets.  Unlike other types of stock, FHLB stock and Banker’s Bank stock is acquired primarily for the right to receive advances 
and loan participations rather than for the purpose of maximizing dividends or stock growth. No ready market exists for the 
FHLB stock and Bankers’ Bank stock, and they  have  no quoted market value.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments. Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant market value information 
and other assumptions, as more fully disclosed in Note 18.  Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters of signifi-
cant judgment regarding interest rates, credit risk, prepayments, and other factors, especially in the absence of broad markets. 
Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could significantly affect the estimates.

In September 2006, the FASB issued ASC 820 (formerly known as SFAS No. 157), “Fair Value Measurements.” ASC 820  
establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”), and expands disclo-
sures about fair value measurements. 

The fair value estimates of existing on-and-off balance sheet financial instruments do not include the value of anticipated future 
business or the value of assets and liabilities not considered financial instruments.  ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that 
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in an orderly transaction between market par-
ticipants at the measurement date. In addition, the Statement establishes a fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs to 
valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three broad levels.  

In October 2008, the FASB issued ASC 820 (formerly known as FASB Staff Position FAS 157-3, “Determining the Fair Value 
of a Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset is Not Active”). which was intended to clarify the application of ASC 
820 (formerly known as SFAS No. 157) and provides an example to illustrate considerations in determining the fair value 
of a financial asset when the market for that financial asset is not active. ASC 820 allows for the use of the reporting entity’s 
own assumptions about future cash flows and appropriate risk-adjusted discount rates when relevant observable inputs are not  
available to determine the fair value for a financial asset in a dislocated market.

Loans.  The Company grants commercial, real estate, and consumer loans to customers in the community in greater Washington, 
DC metropolitan area. The loan portfolio is well diversified and generally is collateralized by assets of the customers. The loans 
are expected to be repaid from cash flow or proceeds from the sale of selected assets of the borrowers. The ability of the Company’s 
debtors to honor their contracts is dependent upon the real estate and general economic conditions in the Company’s market area. 
Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or pay-off generally are  
reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances less the allowance for loan losses, and any deferred fees or costs on orig-
inated loans. Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. Loan origination fees, net of certain direct origination 
costs, are deferred and recognized as an adjustment of the related loan yield using the interest method. The accrual of interest on 
mortgage and commercial loans is discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days delinquent unless the credit is well-secured and 
in process of collection. Consumer loans and other loans are typically charged off no later than 180 days past due. In all cases, 
loans are placed on non-accrual or charged-off at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful. All 
interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on non-accrual or charged-off is reversed against interest income. 
The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual. 
Loans are returned to accrual status when all of the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and 
future payments are reasonably assured.

Allowance for Loan Losses.  The allowance for loan losses is an estimate of the losses that may be sustained in our loan portfo-
lio. The allowance is based on two basic principals of accounting: (i) ASC 450-10, (formerly known as SFAS 5 Accounting for 
Contingencies,) which requires that losses be accrued when they are probable of occurring and estimatable and (ii) ASC 310-10, 
(formerly known as SFAS 114), Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan,) which requires that losses be accrued based 
on the differences between the value of collateral, present value of future cash flows or values that are observable in the secondary 
market and the loan balance.

An allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for loan losses based upon industry standards, known risk 
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characteristics, management’s evaluation of the risk inherent in the loan portfolio and changes in the nature and volume of loan 
activity. Such evaluation considers among other factors, the estimated market value of the underlying collateral, and current 
economic conditions. 

An allowance is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a provision for loan losses charged to earnings. Loan 
losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent 
recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance. The allowance represents an amount that, in management’s judgment, will be  
adequate to absorb any losses on existing loans that may become uncollectible. Management’s judgment in determining the 
adequacy of the allowance is based on evaluations of the collectibility of loans while taking into consideration such factors as 
changes in the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, current economic conditions which may affect a borrower’s ability to repay, 
overall portfolio quality, and review of specific potential losses. This evaluation is inherently subjective, as it requires estimates 
that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available. The allowance consists of specific, general and 
unallocated components. The specific component relates to loans that are classified as doubtful, substandard or special mention. 
For such loans that are also classified as impaired, an allowance is established when the discounted cash flows (or collateral value 
or observable market price) of the impaired loan is lower than the carrying value of that loan. The general component covers non-
classified loans and is based on historical loss experience adjusted for qualitative factors. An unallocated component is maintained 
to cover uncertainties that could affect management’s estimate of probable losses. The unallocated component of the allowance 
reflects the margin of imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for estimating specific and 
general losses in the portfolio.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Bank will be unable to  
collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors 
considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting 
scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls 
generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on 
a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the 
length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to 
the principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on a loan by loan basis for commercial and construction loans by either 
the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the loan’s obtainable market 
price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are  
collectively evaluated for impairment. Accordingly, the Bank does not separately identify individual consumer and residential 
loans for impairment disclosures.

Premises and Equipment.  Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Premises and equipment 
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives; leasehold improvements are amortized over the lives of the respective leases 
or the estimated useful life of the leasehold improvement, whichever is less. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line 
method over the less of the estimated useful lives or the remaining term of the lease for leasehold improvements; and 3 to 15 
years for furniture, fixtures, and equipment. Costs of maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred; improvements and bet-
terments are capitalized. When items are retired or otherwise disposed of, the related costs and accumulated depreciation are 
removed from the accounts and any resulting gains or losses are included in the determination of net income.

Leases. The Bank leases certain buildings under operating leases with terms greater than one year and with minimum lease 
payments associated with these agreements. Rent expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the expected lease term in  
accordance with ASC 840, (formerly known as SFAS 13 “Accounting for Leases”). Within the provisions of certain leases, 
there are predetermined fixed escalations of the minium rental payments over the base lease term (none of the leases contain 
renewal periods, lease concessions, including capital improvement funding, or contingent rental clauses). The effects of the 
escalations have been reflected in rent expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, and the difference between the 
recognized rental expense and the amounts payable under the lease is recorded as deferred lease payments. The amortization 
period for leasehold improvements is the term used in calculating straight-line rent expense or their estimated economic life, 
whichever is shorter.

Other Real Estate Owned.  Real estate properties acquired through loan foreclosures are recorded initially at fair value, less 
expected sales costs. Subsequent valuations are performed by management, and the carrying amount of a property is adjusted 
by a charge to expense to reflect any subsequent declines in estimated fair value. Fair value estimates are based on recent  
appraisals and current market conditions. Gains or losses on sales of real estate owned are recognized upon disposition. 

Income Taxes.  Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined using the liability method. Under this method, the net 
deferred tax asset or liability is determined based on the tax effects of the temporary differences between the book and tax bases 
of the various balance sheet assets and liabilities and gives current recognition to changes in tax rates and laws. Deferred tax 
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assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some portion 
or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Stock-Based Compensation Plans.  Under ASC 718 “Compensation- Stock Compensation” (formerly known as SFAS No. 123R 
“Share Based Payment”), the Company recognizes compensation costs related to share-based payment transactions to be recog-
nized in the financial statements over the period that an employee provides services in exchange for the award. Compensation cost is  
measured based on the fair value of the equity instrument issued at the date of grant.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets. The Company accounts for the valuation of long-lived assets under ASC 205-20 (formerly known 
as SFAS No. 144 “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”).  ASC 205-20 requires that long-lived  
assets and certain identifiable intangible assets be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of the long-lived asset is measured by a comparison of the  
carrying amount of the asset to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are consid-
ered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds 
the estimated fair value of the assets. Assets to be disposed of are reportable at the lower of the carrying amount or the fair value, 
less costs to sell.

Transfer of Financial Assets. Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been 
surrendered. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when 1) the assets have been isolated from the Com-
pany, 2) the transferee obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or 
exchange the transferred assets, and 3) the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an 
agreement to repurchase them before their maturity.

Earnings Per Share. Basic earnings per share represent income available to common shareholders divided by the weighted-
average number of shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share reflect additional common shares that would 
have been outstanding if dilutive potential common shares had been issued, as well as any adjustment to income that would 
result from the assumed issuance. Common equivalent shares are excluded from the computation if their effect is anti-dilutive.

Goodwill.  Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price over fair value of net assets and liabilities acquired.  Under ASC 350-
10 (formerly known as SFAS 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”,) goodwill is not amortized over an estimated life, but 
rather it is evaluated at least annually for impairment by comparing its fair value with its recorded amount and is written down 
when appropriate.  Projected net operating cash flows are compared to the carrying amount of the goodwill recorded and if the 
estimated net operating cash flows are less than the carrying amount, a loss is recognized to reduce the carrying amount to fair 
value.  There was no impairment of goodwill in 2009 or 2008.  For more information regarding Goodwill see Note 6 - Goodwill 
and Other Intangible Assets.

Advertising Costs. The Company follows the policy of expensing advertising costs as incurred.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements.  In June 2009, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2009-01, Topic 
105 – Generally Accepted Accounting Principals – FASB Accounting Standards Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally Ac-
cepted Accounting Principals (formerly known as SFAS No. 168), which establishes the FASB Accounting Standards Codification 
(“Codification”) as the source of authoritative accounting principals recognized by the FASB to be applied by nongovernmental 
entities in the presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principals in the United States 
(“U.S. GAAP”). All guidance contained in the Codification carries an equal level of authority. The Codification does not change 
current U.S. GAAP but is intended to simplify user access to all authoritative U.S. GAAP by providing all of the authoritative lit-
erature related to a particular topic in one place. All existing accounting standard documents are superseded and all other account-
ing literature not included in the Codification is considered non-authoritative. The Codification is effective for interim or annual 
reporting periods ending after September 15, 2009. We made the appropriate changes to U.S. GAAP references in our financial 
statement.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48), Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an Interpretation 
of FASB Statement No. 109 (SFAS 109, now known as ASC 740).  ASC 740 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income 
taxes recognized in an entity’s financial statements.  ASC 740 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for 
the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.  ASC 740 also 
provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition.  
ASC 740 also provides guidance on financial reporting and classification or difference between tax positions taken in a tax return 
and amounts recognized in the financial statements.  ASC 740 was effective for the Company for its fiscal year ended December 
31, 2009. The implementation of ASC 740 did not have a material effect in the consolidated financial statements.
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In December 2007, the FASB issued ASC 805 (formerly known as SFAS No. 141(R)) “Business Combinations,” which  
replaces SFAS 141 and establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer in a business combination recognizes 
and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any controlling interest;  
recognizes and measures goodwill acquired in the business combination or a gain from a bargain purchase; and determines what 
information to disclose to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business 
combination.  ASC 805  is effective for acquisitions by the Company taking place on or after January 1, 2009. Early adoption 
is prohibited. Accordingly, a calendar year-end company is required to record and disclose business combinations following 
existing accounting guidance until January 1, 2009. Adoption of the rule resulted in approximately $194,100 in costs incurred 
in 2008 being expensed in January 2009.

In December 2007, the FASB issued ASC 810 (formerly Known as SFAS No. 160) “Non-controlling Interests in Consolidated 
Financial Statements” .  ASC 810 establishes new accounting and reporting standards for the non-controlling interest in a sub-
sidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. Before this statement, limited guidance existed for reporting non-controlling 
interests (minority interest). As a result, diversity in practice exists. In some cases minority interest is reported as a liability and 
in others it is reported in the mezzanine section between liabilities and equity. Specifically, ASC 810  requires the recognition 
of a non-controlling interest (minority interest) as equity in the consolidated financials statements and separate from the parent’s 
equity. The amount of net income attributable to the non-controlling interest will be included in consolidated net income on the 
face of the income statement.  ASC 810 clarifies that changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in 
deconsolidation are equity transactions if the parent retains its controlling financial interest. In addition, this statement requires 
that a parent recognize gain or loss in net income when a subsidiary is deconsolidated. Such gain or loss will be measured using 
the fair value of the non-controlling equity investment on the deconsolidation date.  ASC 810 also includes expanded disclosure 
requirements regarding the interests of the parent and its non-controlling interests.  ASC 810 was effective for the Company on 
January 1, 2009. The adoption of ASC 810 did not have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

In January 2009, the FASB issued FSP EITF 99-20-1, “Amendment to the Impairment Guidance of EITF Issue No. 99-20” 
(“FSP 99-20-1”).  FSP-20-1 amends the impairment guidance in EITF Issue No. 99-20, “Recognition of Interest income and 
Impairment on Purchased Beneficial Interests and Beneficial Interests That Continue to be Held by a Transferor in Securi-
tized Financial Assets.”  The FASB stated that the objective of FSP 99-20-1 was to achieve more consistent determination of 
whether an other-than-temporary impairment has occurred.  An entity with beneficial interest within the scope of FSP 99-20-1 
is no longer required to solely consider market participant assumptions when evaluating cash flows for an adverse change that 
would be indicative of other- than- temporary impairment.  FSP 99-20-1 also retains and emphasizes the objective of an other- 
than-temporary impairment assessment and the related disclosure requirements of ASC 320 should be applied prospectively for 
interim and annual reporting periods ending after December 15, 2008.  Retrospective application to a prior interim or annual 
reporting period is not permitted.  The Company has complied with the provision of FSP 99-20-1 as of December 31, 2009.  

In early April 2009, the FASB issued the following additional guidance now codified in the ASC’s list below (formerly listed 
as the FSPs below), that is intended to provide additional guidance and require additional disclosures relating to fair value 
measurements and other-than-temporary impairment (“OTTI”) on an interim and/or annual basis:

•  FSP No. FAS 157-4, Determing Fair Value and When the Volume and Level of Activity for the Asset or Liability Have 
Significantly Decreased and Identifying Transactions That Are Not Orderly, codified in ASC 820, Fair Value Measure-
ments and Disclosures. This guidance provides additional direction for estimating fair value when the volume and level 
of activity for the asset or liability have significantly decreased as well as guidance on identifying circumstances that 
indicate a transaction is not orderly. Our adoption of this new standard during the quarter ended June 30, 2009 had no 
impact on our results of operations or financial position, although additional disclosures were required.

•  FSP No. FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2, Recognition and Presentation of Other-Than-Temporary Impairments, codified 
in ASC 320, Investments – Debt and Equity Securities. This guidance, which applies to debt securities, is intended to 
provide greater clarity to investors about the credit and noncredit components of an OTTI even and to more effectively 
communicate when an OTTI event has occurred. It defines the credit component of an OTTI charge as the difference 
between the present value of the cash flows expected to be collected and the amortized cost basis of the debt security. 
When an entity does not intend to sell the security and it is more likely than not that the entity will not have to sell 
the security before recovery of its cost basis, it will recognize the credit component of an OTTI charge in earning and 
the remaining portion in other comprehensive income. In addition, it requires additional disclosures about investment 
securities on an interim basis. Our adoption of this guidance during the quarter ended June 30, 2009 had no impact on 
our results of operations or financial position, although additional disclosures were required.
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In June 2008, the FASB issued new guidance now codified in ASC 260, Earnings Per Share (formerly FSP EITF 03-6-1, 
Determing Whether Instruments Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions are Participating Securities). This guidance 
provides that unvested share-based payment awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents, 
whether paid or unpaid, are participating securities and are required to be included in the computation of earnings per share 
pursuant to the two-class method described in ASC 260. The two-class method of computing earning per share includes an 
earnings allocation formular that determines earnings per share for common stock and any participating securities according 
to dividends declared, whether paid or unpaid, and participation rights in undistributed earnings. All prior period earnings per 
share data presented is required to be adjusted retrospectively to conform with the provisions of this new guidance. Adoption 
of this guidance had no material impact.

In May 2009, the FASB issued a new standard now codified in ASC855, Subsequent Events (formerly SFAS No. 165, Subse-
quent Events), which establishes general standards of accounting for and disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet 
date but before the financial statements are issued or are available to be issued. It requires the disclosure of the date through 
which an entity has evaluated subsequent events and the basis for that date. It is effective for interim or annual financial periods 
ending June 15, 2009. The adoption of this standard did not have any impact on our results of operations or financial position.

In December 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-16, Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets (formerly Statement No. 166, 
Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 140). This standard amends the guidance 
on accounting for transfers of financial assets, including securitization transactions, where entities have continued exposure to 
risks related to transferred financial assets. This standard also expands the disclosure requirements for such transactions. It is 
effective as of the beginning of the first annual reporting period that begins after November 15, 2009. We are currently evaluat-
ing the impact of this standard on our financial statements.

In January 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-06, Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements. This standard re-
quires new disclosures on the amount and reason for transfers in and out of Level 1 and 2 recurring air value measurements. 
The standard also requires disclosure of activities (i.e., on a gross basis), including purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements, 
in the reconciliation of Level 3 fair value recurring measurements. The standard clarifies existing disclosure requiremets on 
levels of disaggregaton and disclosures about inputs and valuation techniques. The new disclosures regarding Level 1 and 2 
fair value measurements and clarification of existing disclosures are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2009. 
The disclosures about the reconciliation of information in Level 3 recurring fair value measurements are required for periods 
beginning after December 15, 2010. We are currently evaluating the impact of this standard on our financial statements.

NOtE 2 – INvEStMENtS SECUrItIES

Amortized costs and fair values of the securities available for sale as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

  Gross Gross
 Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated Fair 
December 31, 2009 Cost Gains Losses  Value
US Government Agencies $ 16,489,111 $              - $       (157,080) $ 16,332,031                                  
Mortgage Backed Securities 3,064,028 44,825 - 3,108,853
Asset-backed Debt Securities 2,137,520 - (2,104,957) 32,563
Municipal Securities                                                               3,036,042                               -                        (33,588)                    3,002,454
  total $ 24,726,701                 $  44,825             $   (2,295,625)  $ 22,475,901

  Gross Gross
 Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated Fair 
December 31, 2008 Cost Gains Losses  Value
Mortgage Backed Securities $ 19,539,154 $      366,137       $(      24,133) $  19,881,158
CMOs 9,364,970 83,954 (        4,670) 9,444,254
Asset-backed Debt Securities 2,113,606 -   ( 1,663,606) 450,000
  total $ 31,017,730 $      450,091   $ ( 1,692,409) $  29,775,412

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities available for sale as of December 31, 2009 by contractual maturities are 
shown below. Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because the securities may be called or prepaid without 
any penalties.
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 Amortized Cost Estimated Fair Value
US government Agencies Securities  
< 1 year $                      - $                      -
1-5 years 16,489,111 16,332,031
5-10 years - -
>10 years - -
  
Mortgage Backed Securities  
< 1 year                       -                       -
1-5 years - -
5-10 years - - 
>10 years 3,064,028 3,108,853
  
Asset-backed Securities  
> 10 years 2,476,822 32,563
  
Municipal Securities  
< 1 year                       -                       -
1-5 years - -
5-10 years 2,182,440 2,156,604
>10 years 853,602 845,850
  
  total $      25,066,003 $      22,475,901

For the year ended December 31, 2009, $46,532,218 in securities available for sale were sold resulting in gross realized gains of 
$850,676. For the year ended December 31, 2008, $11,268,472 in securities available for sale were sold resulting in gross real-
ized gains of $281,111.  The estimated fair value of securities pledged to secure public funds, securities sold under agreements 
to repurchase and for other purposes amounted to $17,417,297 at December 31, 2009 and $20,709,336 at December 31, 2008.
Investment securities available for sale that have an unrealized loss position at December 31, 2009 and 2008 are detailed below.

   Unrealized Loss
   Less than 12 More than 12
December 31, 2009 Fair Value Total months  months 
US Government Agencies Securities                                       $     16,332,031 $        157,080  $                - $       157,080
Mortgage Backed Securities - - - -               
Asset-backed Debt Securities 32,563 2,104,957 - 2,104,957
Municipal Securities                             3,002,454                   33,588 - 33,588 
  Total $     19,367,048 $     2,295,625  $                - $   2,295,625 

   Unrealized Loss
   Less than 12 More than 12
December 31, 2008 Fair Value Total months  months 
US Government Agencies Securities                                        $                    -         $                 -            $  -             $                  -
Mortgage Backed Securities       823,577         24,133        24,133 -
CMOs 2,396,910 4,670 4,670 -
Asset-backed Debt Securities 450,000 1,663,606 - 1,663,606
Municipal Securities                                                                                        -                           -                                 -                                -
   Total $       3,670,487 $   1,692,409 $       28,803 $   1,663,606

The investment in asset backed debt securities is reported in the financial statements at an amount less than its historical cost.  
The total fair value of these investments at December 31, 2009 and 2008, was $ 32,563 and $ 450,000 which is approximately 
0.1% and 1.5% respectively, of the Company’s available for sale investment portfolios.  These declines were due primarily the 
continuing state of the economy and the financial sector.  Based on evaluation of available evidence, including recent changes 
in market interest rates, credit rating information and information obtained from regulatory filings, management has determined 
that a portion of these declines is other than temporary resulting in a write down in December 2009 of $339,302. 
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NOtE 3 – LOANS

The composition of net loans is summarized as follows: 

December 31, 2009 2008
Construction & Development $          47,963,805 $         26,488,254
Residential Property 58,677,748 32,535,462
Commercial Property 101,687,032 107,036,857
  Real Estate Loans 208,328,585 166,060,573
Commercial & Industrial Loans 61,885,101 60,398,298
Consumer Loans 1,775,341 1,061,843
  Total Loans 271,989,027 227,520,714
Less:  Unearned Fees, net 265,345 162,158
Less: Allowance for Loan Losses 2,856,736 2,145,672 
  Net Loans $        268,866,946       $      225,212,884

NOtE 4 – ALLOWANCE FOr LOAN LOSSES

Changes in the allowance for loan losses were as follows:

December 31,    2009 2008 2007
Balance at beginning of year    $  2,145,672 $  2,114,234 $  1,476,143
Provision charged to operations    1,515,086    605,000 659,565
Loan charge-offs    (    1,249,332) (574,502)               (21,474)
Recoveries of loans previously charged-off    445,310 940 -
Balance at end of year    $  2,856,736 $  2,145,672 $  2,114,234

Non-accrual and other non-performing loans and assets are as follows:

December 31,    2009 2008 2007
Non-accrual loans    $   3,093,960 $   2,532,690               $     702,462         
Loans 90-days past due and accruing    - - -
Restructured loans    439,102 382,431 -
Other Real Estate Owned    900,000 945,446 -
Total Non-Performing Loans and Assets    $    4,433,062 $   3,860,567               $     702,462         

Non-accrual loans amounted to $3,093,960 at December 31, 2009 and $2,532,690 at December 31, 2008.  If interest had  
been accrued, such income would have been approximately $96,459 and $72,989, respectively. 

Specific allowances related to non-accrual loans amounted to $524,329 and $210,027 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, 
repectively.

NOtE 5 – PrEMISES & EQUIPMENt

Premises and equipment is summarized as follows:

December 31, 2009 2008
Furniture & Equipment $      1,621,855 $       1,626,280
Leasehold Improvements 2,352,997 2,355,824
  Gross Premises & Equipment 3,974,852 3,982,104
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 2,061,433 1,677,691 
  Premises & Equipment, net $      1,913,419 $       2,304,413

Depreciation and amortization expense included in operating expenses for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 
2007 was $422,314, $540,169 and $534,262 respectively.
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The Bank leases all of its offices and branch facilities under non-cancelable operating lease arrangements. Certain leases  
contain options, which enable the Bank to renew the leases for additional periods. In addition to minimum rentals, the leases 
have escalation clauses based upon price indices and include provisions for additional payments to cover real estate taxes and 
common area maintenance.  Rent expense associated with these operating leases for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, 
and 2007 totaled $1,313,781, $1,268,054, and $1,193,809, respectively.

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments required under operating leases that have initial or remaining 
lease terms in excess of one year.

  Amount
 2010 $     1,072,129      
 2011 1,094,431
 2012 1,119,828
 2013 1,045,019
 2014 937,112
 Thereafter 2,694,932
   Total $     7,963,451

NOtE 6 – gOODWILL & OtHEr INtANgIBLE ASSEtS

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate a possible impair-
ment. The Company has no intangibles other than goodwill. Goodwill outstanding for December 31, 2009 and 2008 was 
$3,601,179.  The Company performs annual goodwill impairment tests in the fourth quarter of each year using the fair value  
approach. No impairment was recognized for December 31, 2009 and 2008. 

NOtE 7 – DEPOSItS

The composition of deposits is summarized as follows:

December 31, 2009 2008
Demand deposit accounts $     39,354,585 $       21,793,735
NOW accounts 17,203,240 17,053,566
Savings accounts 19,709,508 4,307,456
Money market accounts 22,318,401 26,487,594
Time deposits under $100,000 70,004,919 63,267,522
Time deposits $100,000 and over 108,019,176 97,373,939 
  Total Deposits $   276,609,829 $     230,283,812

At December 31, 2009, the scheduled maturities of time deposits were as follows:

 Amount
 2010 $  147,608,250
 2011 25,184,474
 2012 2,886,675
 2013 995,482
 2014 1,349,214
   Total $  178,024,095          

Time deposits include Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Service (“CDARS”) balances and brokered deposits. The Bank 
had $7,970,391 and $2,950,259 in CDARS deposits at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Brokered deposits totaled 
$16,507,391 and $23,832,547 at December 31 2009 and 2008, respectively.
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NOtE 8 – BOrrOWINgS

The composition of borrowings is summarized as follows:

December 31, 2009 2008
Customer Repurchase Agreements  $                      - $     14,704,491
FHLB Advances 33,850,000 25,350,000
  Total Borrowings  $     33,850,000 $     40,054,491

Weighted interest rate 3.25% 2.05%

Average for the year ended December 31, 2009:
     Outstanding $     37,985,319 $     33,276,119
     Interest Rate 2.68% 2.32%
Maximum month-end outstanding $     53,659,303 $     49,175,177

Repurchase agreements are securities sold under agreements to repurchase, which are secured transactions with customers and 
generally mature the day following the date sold. These balances are fully secured by Bank investment securities, which the 
Bank holds in safekeeping for the benefit of these customers. Repurchase agreements are primarily used by customers as a cash 
management tool, and are not considered deposits according to the FDIC.  In 2009 the Bank suspended its customer Repurchase 
Agreement Program. 

Through its correspondent banks, the Bank has established $15,700,000 in unsecured Federal Funds lines of credit. In addi-
tion, as a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta (FHLB), the Bank has access to numerous borrowing programs 
with total credit availability established at 20% of total quarter-end assets. FHLB advances are fully collateralized by pledges 
of US Government Agency, mortgage backed, and CMO investment securities (see Note 2), as well as certain qualifying real 
estate secured loans (see Note 3). As of December 31, 2009, the Bank had pledged $11,356,829 in qualifying home equity lines 
of credit, $38,144,977 in qualifying commercial loans, and $5,214,462 in qualifying residential real estate secured loans. At 
December 31, 2009, the Bank had $20,866,000 in remaining credit available with the FHLB.

Contractual maturities of FHLB borrowings at December 31, 2009 were as follows:

  Amount
 2010 $   1,000,000             
 2011 8,500,000
 2012 11,500,000
 2013 12,850,000
   Total $ 33,850,000

NOtE 9 – EQUItY

In January 2009, the Bank received $6.633 million from the US Treasury under the CPP TARP program, in the form of  
Series A preferred shares with a 5% non-cumulative dividend. With this investment, the Bank issued 332 warrants to the US 
Treasury for the right to purchase 332 shares of Series B preferred shares with a 9% non-cumulative dividend. Under the CPP 
TARP program as a privately held institution, these warrants were immediately exercised with no additional capital investment.  
The Bank is accreting the liquidation value of these shares over five years. When the Bank was merged into the newly formed 
Company, both Series A and Series B preferred shares were transferred to the Company with the dividend becoming cumulative. 
In October 2009, the Company received $6.843 million from the US Treasury under the CPP TARP program in the form of Series 
C  preferred shares with a 5% cumulative dividend. No additional warrants were issued as part of this additional investment.

In November 2009, the Company sold 196,400 shares of common stock at $12.00 per share in a private offering, netting  
approximately $2.2 million in new capital after offering costs.

In connection with the Company’s third offering in December 2005, the Company issued 400,000 3-year warrants with a $12.00 
strike price and a stated expiration of  December 30, 2008. In 2008, the Company offered warrant holders the option to extend their  
warrants for 2 years for $1.00 per warrant, which approximated the fair value of the extension. In response to this offer, 106,600 
warrants were exercised generating $1,279,200 in additional capital; 218,120 warrants were extended generating $218,120 in 
additional capital; and 75,280 warrants expired.
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As of December 31, 2009, the Company has 369,306 of warrants outstanding with weighted average strike price of $12.00 per 
warrant.

The Company has three stock option plans. All plans provide that common stock will be reserved for granting both incentive 
stock options and non-qualified stock options to purchase these shares. The exercise price per share will not be less than the fair 
value of a share of common stock on the date which such options are granted, subject to adjustments for the effects of any stock 
splits or stock dividends. The following summarizes the Company’s stock option plans as of December 31, 2009:

    Remaining to
 Authorized Outstanding Exercised be Issued 
2004 Stock Option Plan 134,836 132,550 1,067 1,219
2005 Stock Option Plan 400,000 385,189 9,550 5,261
FLBC Stock Option Plan 76,915 - 8,876 68,039
  Total 611,751 517,739 19,493 74,519

The fair value of each option granted, measured at the grant date, is calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing 
model.  The fair value of stock options granted was determined using the following weighted average assumptions:

    2009 2008 2007
Dividend Yield                            0.00%  0.00%  0.00%
Risk-free interest rate    3.60% 3.64% 4.72%
Expected life, in years    10 9 9
Weighted average fair value of options granted during the year    $  4.27 $  2.40 $  1.83 

The following summarizes the transactions for all stock option plans for the year ended December 31:

 2009 2008 2007
 # of Options Avg Strike # of Options Avg Strike # of Options Avg Strike 
Beginning balance 511,099 $  12.23 431,989 $ 12.02 326,702 $ 10.87
Granted 19,700 10.02 101,400 13.42 108,900 15.16
Exercised (     300) 16.83 (    9,240)  13.04 (     400) 10.75
Forfeited (12,760) 15.75 (  13,050)  13.98 (  3,213) 12.11
Ending balance 517,739 $  12.05 511,099 $ 12.23 431,989 $ 12.02

At December 31, 2009, options issued and outstanding had exercise prices, weighted-average remaining contractual lives  
and were exercisable as follows:

 Outstanding Options Exerciseable Options
  Wgt Avg  Wgt Avg Wgt Avg 
Exercise  Remaining  Remaining  Exercise
Price Range  # of Options Life (in years) # of Options Life (in years) Price
$9.00-$9.99 1,200  1.2   1,200  1.2  $  9.00 
$10.00-$10.99 124,750  4.4   106,250   4.6   10.25 
$11.00-$11.99  172,400   6.1  109,150  6.0   11.00 
$12.00-$12.99  48,000   7.2  28,500   6.3  12.00 
$13.00-$13.99                                                       1,300  0.4  1,300 0.4 13.50
$14.00-$14.99                                                   120,499  7.7 1,749 6.8 14.00
$15.00-$15.99                                                               -  - - - - 
$16.00-$16.99                                                     49,590  7.4 - -  - 
  Total 517,739   6.3  248,149  5.4  $  10.83  

As of December 31, 2009, there was no restricted stock outstanding or authorized. The total unrecognized compensation cost 
related to non-vested share based compensation arrangements granted under the plan as of December 31, 2009 was $584,917. 
The cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.81 years.
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NOtE 10 – COMMItMENtS & CONtINgENCIES

Credit Extension Commitments
The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financ-
ing needs of its customers. These financial instruments consist primarily of commitments to extend credit and unfunded loan 
commitments. These instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of the amount recognized in 
the balance sheet. Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any 
condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may 
require payment of a fee by the customer. Unfunded commitments under lines of credit, revolving credit lines, and overdraft 
protection are agreements for possible future extensions of credit to existing customers. Since many of the commitments are 
expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash require-
ments. The Company evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral, if any, 
deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of credit is based on management’s credit evaluation of the counterparty. 
Collateral normally consists of real property, liquid assets or business assets.

The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for com-
mitments to extend credit is represented by the contractual notional amount of those instruments. The Company uses the same 
credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.  The Company had 
$40,623,674 and $50,166,127 in outstanding commitments to extend credit at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

In 2007, the Company initiated selling mortgage services to its customers and closing on loans in the investor’s name. The 
Company has executed agreements with various investors in which the Company warrants the accuracy of the information 
contained in each loan application.  If the information is incorrect or if the borrower commits fraud or if the borrower defaults 
on the first payment, the the Company may become obligated to indenmify the investor for any loss sustained as a result or, in 
certain cases, to repurchase the loan.  As of December 31, 2009 or 2008, the Company has no residual contingencies related 
to incorrect information, borrower fraud, or first payment default. No loans were required to be repurchased in 2009 or 2008.

Litigation
In the ordinary course of business, the Company has various outstanding commitments and contingent liabilities that are not 
reflected in the accompanying financial statements.  In the opinion of management, after consultation with legal counsel, the 
ultimate disposition of these matters is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the Company.

Other Contractual Arrangements
In addition, the Bank has a long term contract with Fidelity Information Systems (Fidelity) to provide core and item processing 
services vital to the Bank’s operations. Under the terms of the agreement, the Bank may cancel the agreement subject to a sub-
stantial cancellation penalty based on the current monthly billing and remaining term of the contract. The current contract expires 
October 2011.

NOtE 11 – rELAtED PArtY trANSACtIONS

The aggregate amount of loans outstanding to employees, officers, directors, and to companies in which the Company’s direc-
tors were principal owners, amounted to $11,753,000 and $10,656,174 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.  In 2009, 
advances to related parties totaled $6,315,035 and principal repayments and other reductions totaled $4,261,460.   Such loans 
were made in the ordinary course of business with substantially the same terms (including interest rates and collateral) as those 
prevailing at the time, for comparable transactions with other persons.  They do not involve more than normal risk of collectibility 
or present other unfavorable features.

Total deposit accounts with related parties totaled $11,578,555 and $29,316,983 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The Company has no service or other contract or agreement with any related party.
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NOtE 12 – INCOME tAXES

Net deferred tax assets consisted of the following components:

December 31, 2009 2008 
Net Operating Loss Carry forwards $    1,018,102 $    1,180,628 
Provision for Loan Losses 944,096 750,002 
Deferred Fees (   265,395) (   300,582) 
Depreciation & Amortization 247,222 213,640 
Net Unrealized (Gain) Losses on Securities Available for Sale 997,189 624,821 
Other 83,478 93,389 
 Net Deferred Tax Assets $    3,024,692 $    2,561,898      

The provision for income taxes charged to operations consisted of the following for the year ended December 31: 

   2009 2008 2007
Current tax expense    $     747,300 $                 - $                    -
Deferred tax expense (benefit)        (228,030) 129,000  (  363,666)
  Total    $     519,270 $     129,000 $   (  363,666)

The income tax provision differs from the amount of income tax determined by applying the U.S. Federal income tax rate to 
pretax income as follows for the year ended December 31:  

   2009 2008 2007
Computed (expected) tax expense   $      361,250 $      110,733 $      277,424
Increase (decrease) due to    
   Valuation allowance change   -  -  ( 700,937)
   State income tax, net of federal tax benefit   -  16,284 40,167
   Other   158,020 1,983 19,680
  Total    $      519,270 $      129,000 $   ( 363,666)

In 2007, the Company removed the valuation allowance and recognized the income tax benefit related to its prior period loss carry-
forwards. Recognition of this valuation allowance resulted in a $788,000 reduction in goodwill and a $700,937 credit to income tax 
expense.

NOtE 13 – CAPItAL rEQUIrEMENtS

The Company is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies.  Failure to meet 
minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory – and possibly additional discretionary – actions by regulators that, if 
undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company’s financial statements.  Under capital adequacy guidelines and the 
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative 
measures of the Company’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices.  
The capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, 
and other factors.
Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company to maintain minimum amounts 
and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier I capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined 
in the regulations), and of Tier I capital to average assets (as defined in the regulations).  Management believes the Company met 
all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject as of December 31, 2009.

As of December 31, 2009, the most recent notification from the FDIC categorized the Company as well capitalized under the 
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action.  To be categorized as well capitalized, the Company must maintain minimum 
total risk-based, Tier I risk-based, and Tier I leverage ratios, as set forth in the table below.  Since that notification, management 
believes there are no conditions or events to change the Company’s category.

The Company’s actual capital amounts and ratios are also presented in the table.
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  For Capital Adequacy To Be Well Capitalized
 Actual  Purposes Under Prompt Corrective 
   Action Provisions
 Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

As of December 31, 2009      
Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets $  41,063,404 14.6% $  22,560,840 >8.0% $  28,201,050 >10.0%
Tier 1 Capital to Risk Weighted Assets 38,206,668 13.6% 11,280,420 >4.0% 16,920,630 >6.0%
Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets 38,206,668 11.3% 13,499,858 >4.0% 16,874,823 >5.0%

As of December 31, 2008      
Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets $  24,226,501 10.3% $  18,696,805 >8.0% $  23,371,006 >10.0%
Tier 1 Capital to Risk Weighted Assets 22,080,829 9.4% 9,348,402 >4.0% 14,022,603 >6.0%
Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets 22,080,829 8.5% 10,385,563 >4.0% 12,981,954 >5.0%

NOtE 14 – EArNINgS PEr SHArE

The following shows the weighted average number of shares used in computing earnings per share and the effect on weighted  
average number of shares of diluted potential common stock. Potential dilutive common stock has no effect on income avail-
able to common shareholders.

For the year ended December 31.

    2009 2008 2007
Net Income    $  543,233 $   196,685 $   1,179,619
Less: TARP Dividends                                                                                                (396,375)                               -                                 -
Less: TARP Accretion                                                                                                  (61,050)                                -                                 -
Net Income -Common    85,808 196,685 1,179,619

Weighted average number of shares outstanding    2,437,995 2,310,681 2,295,998
Effect of dilutive securities:
   Stock Options    - - 175,377
   Warrants                                                                                                                                -                                -                                 -  
Weighted average number of shares outstanding and potential dilution  2,437,995 2,310,681 2,471,375

Basic earnings per share    $  0.04 $   0.08 $   0.51
Diluted earnings per share    $  0.04 $   0.08 $   0.48

NOtE 15 – EMPLOYEE BENEFItS

The Company provides a qualified 401K plan to all eligible employees which is administered through the American Funds. Employ-
ees are eligible to participate in the plan after three months of employment. Eligible employees may, subject to statutory limitations, 
contribute a portion of their salary to the plan through payroll deduction.  In 2009 there was no matching contribution made by the 
Company. Participants are fully vested in their own contributions. Participants are vested in the Company’s matching contributions 
evenly over a 3 year period. Total Company contributions to the plan for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were 
$0, $109,920, $68,505, respectively.

NOtE 16 – OtHEr EXPENSES

The following summarizes Other Expenses:

December 31, 2009 2008 2007
Insurance $        58,793 $        61,313 $        55,978
Professional Fees 670,023 329,366 215,151
Advertising and Public Relations 125,991 125,334 93,304
Postage, Printing, and Supplies 121,698 121,883 180,783
Data Processing 799,969 829,898 762,059
FDIC Premiums 518,689 120,126 18,917
Other 675,151 618,490 542,324
  Total Other Expenses $  2,970,314 $  2,206,410 $   1,868,516



Annual Report 2009 | 51

NOtE 17 – FAIr vALUE OF FINANCIAL INStrUMENtS

The fair value information for financial instruments, which is provided below, is based on the requirements of Financial  
Accounting Standard Board ASC 825 (formerly known as SFAS No. 107 “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial  
Instruments,”) and does not represent the aggregate net fair value of the Company. Much of the information used to  
determine fair value is subjective and judgmental in nature; therefore, fair value estimates, especially for less marketable securi-
ties, may vary. The amounts actually realized or paid upon settlement or maturity could be significantly different. The Company 
uses the following methods and assumptions in estimating fair values of financial instruments:

Cash and cash equivalents – The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value.

Investment securities – The fair value of investment securities held-to-maturity and available-for-sale is estimated based 
on bid quotations received from independent pricing services.

Loans – For variable rate loans that reprice frequently and have no significant change in credit risk, fair values are based 
on carrying values.  For all other loans, fair values are calculated by discounting the contractual cash flows using estimat-
ed market discount rates which reflect the credit and interest rate risk inherent in the loans, or by using the current rates 
at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities.

Deposits – The fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, such as demand, interest checking and money market, 
and savings accounts, is equal to the amount payable on demand at year-end.  The fair value of certificates of deposit is 
based on the discounted value of contractual cash flows using the rates currently offered for deposits of similar remain-
ing maturities.

Off-balance-sheet instruments – The fair value of off-balance-sheet lending commitments is equal to the amount of 
commitments outstanding at December 31.  This is based on the fact that the Company generally does not offer lend-
ing commitments or standby letters of credit to its customers for long periods, and therefore, the underlying rates of the 
commitments approximate market rates.

  2009 2008 
   Carrying  Carrying 
December 31   Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Cash & Cash Equivalents   $  25,423,713 $  25,423,713 $  24,120,202 $  24,120,202
Interest Bearing Balances   23,035,000 23,035,000          7,128,000     7,128,000 
Investment Securities   22,475,901 22,475,901 29,775,412 29,775,412
Loans, net   268,866,946 268,723,181 225,212,884 223,844,555
Deposits   276,609,829 278,808,003 230,283,812 232,581,241
Repurchase Agreements   - - 14,704,491 14,704,491
FHLB Advances   33,850,000 35,236,545 25,350,000 26,343,937
Off Balance Sheet Items   40,623,674 40,623,674 50,166,127 50,166,127

In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates using present value or other  
valuation techniques.  Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and esti-
mate of future cash flows.  This disclosure does not and is not intended to represent the fair value of the Company.  In addition, 
see Note 17 for all disclosures required by ASC 820.

NOtE 18 – FAIr vALUE DISCLOSUrES

The Company adopted ASC 820 which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value under GAAP and 
enhances disclosures about fair value measurements.  Fair value is defined under SFAS as the price that would be received for 
an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal market for the assets or liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants on the measurement date.

The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair values;

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2  Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar 
 assets or liabilities; quoted prices in market that are not active; or other inputs that are 
 observations or can be corroborated by observable market data.
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Level 3  Significant unobservable inputs that reflect a company’s own assumptions about the assumptions 
 that market participants would use in pricing as assets or liability.

As summary of assets and liabilities at December 31, 2009 measured at estimated fair value on a recurring basis were as follows:

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
On a recurring basis:
      Mortgage-backed securities $                  - $         3,002,454 $                -
      US Government Agency securities - 16,332,031 -
      Municipal securities  - 3,002,454 - 
      Asset-backed debt securities - - 32,563 

On a non recurring basis:
Impaired Loans (1) - - 2,988,537
Other Real Estate Owned (2) - - 900,000
Goodwill - - 3,601,179

(1) Includes loans that have been measured for impairment at the fair value of the loans’ collateral.
(2) Other real estate owned is transferred from loans to OREO at the lower of cost or market

During the year ended December 31, 2009, certain impaired loans were re-measured and reported at fair value through a specific 
valuation allowance allocation of the allowance for possible loan losses based upon the fair value of the underlying collateral.  

Level 3 Valuations

Financial instruments are considered Level 3 when their fair values are determine using pricing models, discount flow methodolo-
gies or similar techniques and at least one significant model assumptions in input is unobservable.  Level 3 financial instruments 
also include those for which the determination of fair value requires significant management judgment or estimation. The follow-
ing table presents a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balance for 2009 and 2008 of assets measured on a recurring basis:

  2009  2008
Beginning Balance, January 1 $          450,000  $                    -
Transfer into Level 3: -  2,305,000
Purchases, settlements, paydowns, and maturities -   -
Realized gains (losses) in earnings (339,250)   -
Unrealized gains (losses) in other comprehensive income                                (78,187)                      (1,855,000)
Ending Balance, December 31                                                               $            32,563  $        450,000

NOtE 19 – OtHEr COMPrEHENSIvE INCOME (LOSS)

Other comprehensive income (loss) components and related taxes on securities available-for-sale were as follows: 

    2009 2008 2007
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the period     $  (158,166) $   (1,680,699) $   320,319
Other-Than-Temporarily Impaired included in income     339,302 -  -      
Reclassifications of net gains included in income     (850,676) 281,152  -      
Other comprehensive income (loss) before tax     (669,540) (1,399,547) 320,319 
Deferred tax expense (benefit)     (234,346) (306,354) 96,147  
Other comprehensive income (loss)     $     (435,194) (1,093,193) $   224,172



Annual Report 2009 | 53

Annual Meeting Information
the annual meeting of shareholders will take place on April 19, 2010 at 11am eastern time at the tower Club 
located at 8000 towers Crescent Drive, Suite #1000, Vienna, Virginia. 
 

Executive Team

Shaza l. Andersen George W. Connors IV Matthew R. Johnson
Chief Executive Officer Chief Lending Officer Chief Financial Officer
   

Richard D. Horn Michael M. Amin C. Kevin Curtis
General Counsel Senior Vice President Virginia Market President
 of Operations
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Joseph S. Bracewell Shaza l. Andersen George W. Connors IV Josephine S. Cooper John H. Dalton
Chairman of the Board Chief Executive Officer President & Chief Toyota Motor North Financial Services
  Lending Officer America, Inc. Roundtable,  Housing Policy
    Council 

Board of Directors

Gary Galleberg Kailash C. Goel Richard D. Horn John J. Mahoney Jack Mencia
Investor Delaware Cornerstone  General Counsel Regional Title Incorporated CubeCorp
 Builder   

larry D. Meyers Mark Michael Madhu K. Mohan, M.D. James p. Muldoon William C. oldaker
Meyers & Associates Occasions Caterers Inc. Riverside Medical Group METCOR, Ltd. Oldaker Belair & Wittie, LLP
    

Randall S. peyton, M.D Joe R. Reeder William G. Reilly Gail R. Steckler General (Ret.) 
Arthritis & Sports Greenberg Traurig Champion Title  Infrastructure Johnnie e. Wilson
Orthopaedics  and Settlements Management Group 
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VA Advisory Board

Chad MacDonald  Manny Mencia  Joey Musmar thomas Schuler, MD
Service Force USA Cube Corp Miller Musmar CPA Virginia Spine Institute

MD/DC Advisory Board

thomas e. Doughty  Andrew Glick tony Haramis Marty Janis
Jones Lang LaSalle, Inc. Rock Creek Property Group AES Corporation Atlantic Services

  

Mike Manatos Mark Rittenberg Dr. philip Schoenfeld Reza Malek-Zadah 
Manatos & Manatos AMR Commercial LLC Renu Med Spa Shareholder

Michael Brown, MD Deborah Cochran Jill Collins Grant ehat Charlene lefkowitz-Saenz 
Rejuven8u Cochran & Owen Jill Collins PR  JBG Real Estate 
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 We look forward to seeing 
you and continuing to earn 
your business everyday

  

”
“
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Branch Locations

Corporate Headquarters transfer Agent & Registrar Stock exchange Information
11636 plaza America Drive Stocktrans, Inc. WashingtonFirst Bankshares, Inc
 Reston, VA   20190 (800) 733-1121  trades as “WFBI”
(703) 481-0118 

DC
19th Street Branch
1146 19th Street, nW
Washington, DC 20036
(202) 331-7031

Connecticut Ave Branch
1025 Connecticut Ave, nW
Washington, DC   20036
(202) 296-5588

K Street Branch
1500 K Street, nW
Washington, DC   20005
(202) 587-7000

VA
Great Falls Branch
9851 Georgetown pike
Great Falls, VA   22066
(703) 438-9250

Reston Branch
11636 plaza America Drive
Reston, VA   20190
(703) 481-0118

Sterling Branch
46901 Cedar lakes plaza
Sterling, VA   20164
(703) 421-6900

CoMInG Soon
Fairfax Branch

MD
oxon Hill Branch
6089 oxon Hill Road
oxon Hill, MD   20745
(301) 567-3100

Greenbelt 
6329 Greenbelt Road
Greenbelt, MD   20740
(301) 220-1226

CoMInG Soon
Bethesda Branch
7708 Woodmont Avenue
Bethesda, MD 20814

Corporate Information



www.washingtonfirstbank.com


